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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

Lori A. Shibinette 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Commissioner 603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Karen E. Hebert
Director

April 14, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to amend an existing contract with Waypoint (VC#177166), Manchester, NH to continue
providing a Rapid Re-Housing Program that serves youth at risk for, or experiencing homelessness,
by increasing the price limitation by $196,594 from $585,656 to $782,250 and by extending the
completion date from May 31, 2022 to May 31, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 5, 2019, item #33. It
was subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 20, 2020, item #9, on March
24, 2021, item #7 and most recently amended on September 15, 2021, item #12.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal
years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State Increased .
< Class / Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased)
Y Account Budget Arsoust Budget
Contracts for $15,746 $0 $15,746
2019 | 102-500731 Prog Sve
Contracts for $186,658 $0 $186,658
2020 | 102-500731 Prog Sve
Contracts for $217,768 $0 $217,768
2021 | 102-500731 Prog Svc
Contracts for $155,548 $0 $155,548
2022 | 102-500731 Prog Svc
Grants for $9,936 $16,383 $26,319
2022 | 074-500589 | Public Asst
and Relief
Grants for $0 $180,211 $180,211
2023 | 074-500589 | Public Asst
and Relief
Total $585,656 $196,594 $782,250
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EXPLANATION

Annually, HUD releases a Continuum of Care Program competition. As part of this
competition, the Department (as the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State Continuum of
Care) is required to issue a Request for Proposals based on the HUD application. HUD issues strict
guidelines that specify the eligible activities, populations to be served, expected performance
outcomes, and time frames for the competition. All project applications, new and renewal, are scored
based on a Rank and Review Policy and scoring tools that are created to match the HUD Notice of
Funding Opportunity. Project applications are ranked in order of score from highest to lowest, and
are funded based on this ranking process. Low performing projects are issued a corrective action
plan and are given a year to correct performance issues. This process is guided by a Reallocation
Policy, as required by HUD. All project applications and individual project scores are reviewed by
HUD. HUD informs the Continuum of Care of the funding amount for all renewal projects. Funding
for new projects is determined by the amount of bonus funding, if any, is made available by HUD.

The purpose of this request is to continue a Rapid Re-Housing (RRH), Permanent Housing
Program that delivers rental assistance and supportive services to participants experiencing
homelessness to increase the ability of participants to live more independently. The request adds
funds included in the Notice of Federal Award dated March 14, 2022.

Approximately ten (10) participants who are between the ages of 18 and 24 years will be
served during State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.

The Contractor engages youth referred by the coordinated entry system in order to determine
Rapid Re-Housing eligibility. The Contractor makes referrals to ensure immediate basic needs of
individuals are met. Once enrolled, case management staff work with participants to assess current
housing and service needs as well as barriers to attaining housing. Project staff coordinate with
community resources to connect youth to resources that may assist youth with increasing income,
which may include Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF); job readiness programs; and
Social Security benefits.

Using the federally required Housing First model, the Contractor provides Housing Stability
Case Management and facilitates each participant’s relocation to sustained permanent housing.
Additionally, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently
by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor services by:

e Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

« Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information,
as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

¢ Reviewing data entered into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal
funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.
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Area served: Statewide
Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN# NH0115L1T00(TBD)

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

™ 1\
LonN . Shibinette
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Waypoint ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 5, 2019, (ltem #33), as amended on May 20, 2020, (Item #9), as amended on March 24, 2021,
(Item #7), and as amended on September 15, 2021, (Item #12), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
May 31, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$782,250

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Rapid Re-Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.1., to read:

1.2.1. 100% Federal Funds, Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing, as awarded on January
14, 2019, February 6, 2019, March 17, 2020, April 4 2021, and March 14, 2022 by the
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD), CFDA 14.267, FAIN
NH0115L1T001800, NHO115L1T001901, NHO115L1T002002, NHO115L1TOO(TBD).

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Rapid Re-Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.3., to read:

1.2.3.  Funding allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program:

1.2:3.1. Rental Assistance: $462,190
1.2.3.2. Case Management: $5,298
1.2.3.3. Transportation: $494
1.2.3.2. Supportive Services: $278,008
1.2.3.3. Administrative Expenses: $36,260
1.2.3.4. Total Allocation Amount: $782,250

5. Add Exhibit B-5, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SFY 2022 (6/1/22 to 6/30/22), which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit B-6, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SFY 2023 (7/1/22 to 5/31/23), which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

:Ds
SS8-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A04 Waypoint Contractor Initials

471272022
A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:

A28CACER184A416

Date Name: Karen Hebert
Title: pivision Director

Waypoint

4/12/2022 [bbga. ZIW Au Teledo

2EBDBA264DIF4B0. .
Date Name: Borja Alvarez de Toledo

Title:  president and ceo

§S5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A04 Waypoint
A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
4/14/2022 ?‘“‘J’“ Gunnino
Date Name: “Guarino

Title:  attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
SS-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A04 Waypoint

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit B-5, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4

Contractor Name:

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Waypoint

Budget Request for: $S-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A04

Budget Period: SFY 2022 (6/1/22-6/30/22)

CoC Funds
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance s 9.851.00 | § = S = 3 x $ = $ $ 9,851.00 | § $ =
Supportive Services $ 5,792.00 | § - $ = 3 e $ = $ $ 5,762.00 | $ $ -
| Admini: ion $ 740.00 [ § - s = $ - $ - $ $ 740.00 | § $ =
25% Required Match: $ 4,281.00 | § - s = $ 4,281.00 | § = $ 3 - $ $ ¥

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE| § 20,664.00 | § - s - |s 4,281.00 | - | $ 16,383.00 | § $ -

Waypoint
$5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A02

Exhibit B-5, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4
Page 1of 1

oS
Contractor Initials. [ MT
Dat

4/12/2022
]
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Exhibit B-6, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4

Contractor Name:

Waypoint

Budget Request for: SS5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A04

Budget Period: SFY 2023 (7/1/22-5/30/23)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CoC Funds
COST SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $ 108,361.00 | § $ 3 - $ $ $ 108.361.00 | § $
Supportive Services $ 63,710.00 | § S $ - S s $ 63,710.00 | & s
| Admini $ 8.140.00 | § $ 3 - $ $ $ 8,140.00 | § $
25% Required Match: $ 47.088.00 | § $ $ 47,088.00 | § $ $ 4 - $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE| s 227,299.00 | § $ $ 47,088.00 | § $ $ 180,211.00 | § $

Waypoint
5$5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A02
Exhibit B-6, Budget Sheat, Amendment #4
Page 10of 1

Contractor |nitia|sE£

4/12/2022
Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that WAYPOINT is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 25, 1914. T further certify that
all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 62585
Certificate Number: 0005756500

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,
I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 12th day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, __KENNETH SHELDON, Board Chair, do hereby certify that:
1. lam aduly elected Officer of ___ WAYPOINT___.
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on __12/4/18

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND CEO

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

___BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO ___is the duly elected __ PRESIDENT/CEO__of the Agency.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

March 17, 2022 /1/

Date (Signature of the Elected Officer)
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
03/18/2022

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONIACT  Andrea Nicklin
FIAl/Cross Insurance mg";o £xy: (603) 669-3218 (F,f‘,’é' Noj:  (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street L s,  Manch.certs@crossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED INSURER B: Cranite State Health Care and Human Services Self-
Waypoint INSURER ¢ : Travelers Cas. & Surety Co of America 31194
Po Box 448 INSURER D :
INSURER E :
Manchester NH 03105 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: __ 21-22 All, 22-23 WC REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
ER ADDL[SUBR
R TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WyD POLICY NUMBER (MDD YY) | (MMIDONYYY) LMITS
><| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
A NTED
] cLams-wace OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | 8 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
A PHPK2294409 07/01/2021 | 07/01/2022 | personaL & ADVINUURY | s 1:000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
X roLicy |:| Seer D Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | 5 2:000,000
X otHer: Professional Liability Aggregate - Prof Liab s 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) s 1,000,000
><| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED "
A AUTOS ONLY AUTOS PHPK2294417 07/01/2021 | 07/01/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)
$
><| UMBRELLALIAB | 3<] occuR EACH OCCURRENCE g 4000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMSMADE PHUB774835 07/01/2021 | 07/01/2022 | scorecate s 4,000,000
DED ] XI reTenTion s 10,000 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY —_— XS | & s
[ oSl it e i S E] NIA HCHS$20220000059 (3a.) NH 01/01/2022 | 01/01/2023 | EL:-EACHACCIDENT B
(Mandatory in NH) EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOVEE | 5 1:000,000
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L.DISEASE-POLICYLIMIT |§ "WYYV
o Limit $500,000
Fidelity & Forgery .
Cc 105912196 04/01/2021 | 04/01/2024 |Deductible $500

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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WAYPOINT

Help Along the Way

Formerly
CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

MISSION STATEMENT:

Empowering people of all ages through an array of human services and advocacy

HEADGUARTERS

Manchester, N
waypointnh.org
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WAYPOINT

Help Along the Way

WAYPOINT

Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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(\L) MELANSON

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Waypoint

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Waypoint, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

Merrimack, New Hampshire

Andover, Massachusetts

Greenfield, Massachusetts

Ellsworth, Maine 800.282.2440 | melansoncpas.com
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of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Waypoint as of December 31, 2020, and the changes
in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Waypoint’s 2019 consolidated financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our
report dated May 26, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedules of Operating Expenses for 2020 and 2019 are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
April 21, 2021 on our consideration of Waypoint's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our

800.282.2440 | melansoncpas.com
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testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Waypoint’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Waypoint’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

MeLomssn

Merrimack, New Hampshire
April 21, 2021

800.282.2440 | melansoncpas.com
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WAYPOINT
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2020
(with comparative totals as of December 31, 2019)

2020
Without Donor With Donor 2020 2019
Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S 2,127,044 S 626,270 S 2,753,314 S 107,732

Restricted cash 72,111 - 72,111 69,747

Accounts receivable, net 355,608 - 355,608 582,428

Grants receivable 845,159 - 845,159 678,502

Contributions receivable - - - 79,161

Prepaid expenses 177,418 - 177,418 145,979
Total Current Assets 3,577,340 626,270 4,203,610 1,663,549
Noncurrent Assets:

Investments 18,602,732 2,729,290 21,332,022 18,887,020

Beneficial interest held in trusts - 1,987,871 1,987,871 1,837,101

Property and equipment, net 6,437,580 - 6,437,580 6,460,382
Total Noncurrent Assets 25,040,312 4,717,161 29,757,473 27,184,503
TOTAL ASSETS S 28,617,652 S 5,343,431 S 33,961,083 S 28,848,052
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable S 238,348 S - S 238,348 S 139,382

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 621,258 = 621,258 646,070

Other liabilities 64,899 - 64,899 66,628

Bonds payable 160,000 - 160,000 150,000

Refundable advance 2,088,559 - 2,088,559 -
Total Current Liabilities 3,173,064 - 3,173,064 1,002,080
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Bonds payable, net of current portion 3,755,000 - 3,755,000 3,915,000

Deferred loans - NHHFA 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 1,250,000

Interest rate swap agreements 1,282,753 - 1,282,753 1,072,580

Refundable advance 440,750 - 440,750 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,728,503 - 6,728,503 6,237,580
Total Liabilities 9,901,567 - 9,901,567 7,239,660
Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions 18,716,085 - 18,716,085 16,779,112

With donor restrictions - 5,343,431 5,343,431 4,829,280
Total Net Assets 18,716,085 5,343,431 24,059,516 21,608,392
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 28,617,652 S 5,343,431 S 33,961,083 S 28,848,052

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4
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WAYPOINT
Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

2020
Without Donar With Donor 2020 2019
Restrictions Restrictions Total Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Support:
Government grants S 8,253,575 S - S 8,253,575 $ 5,502,499
Contributions 534,284 1,272,131 1,806,415 1,296,284
In-kind contributions 48,079 - 48,079 87,864
Income from special events, net 421,706 - 421,706 487,018
Revenue:
Service fees 4,892,693 - 4,892,693 5,524,270
Other (loss) 30,607 - 30,607 65,971
Net assets released from restriction:

Program releases 1,184,550 (1,184,550) - -
Endowment releases 30,058 (30,058) . -
Endowment transfer to support operations 172,162 - 172,162 627,685
Total Support and Revenue 15,567,714 57,523 15,625,237 13,591,591

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services 13,335,147 - 13,335,147 12,086,191
Management and general 1,615,774 - 1,615,774 1,308,438
Fundraising 637,485 - 637,485 517,402
Total Operating Expenses 15,588,406 - 15,588,406 13,912,031
Change in net assets before
non-operating items (20,692) 57,523 36,831 (320,440)
NON-OPERATING ITEMS:
Investment income (loss) 2,327,782 305,858 2,633,640 3,380,301
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swap (210,173) - (210,173) (187,054)
Gain on the sale of asset 11,132 - 11,132 -
Change in beneficial interest - 150,770 150,770 157,510
Interest income 1,086 - 1,086 1,851
Endowment transfer to support operations (172,162) - (172,162) (627,685)
Total Non-Operating Items 1,957,665 456,628 2,414,293 2,724,923
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,936,973 514,151 2,451,124 2,404,483
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,779,112 4,829,280 21,608,392 19,203,909
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S 18,716,085 S 5,343,431 S 24,059,516 S 21,608,392

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Personnel expense:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Retirement plan
Payroll related costs
Mileage reimbursement
Contracted services
Subtotal personnel expense

Accounting

Assistance to individuals
Communications

Conferences, conventions, meetings
Depreciation

In-kind contributions

Insurance

Interest

Legal

Membership dues

Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Printing and publications

Rental and equipment maintenance
Supplies

Travel

Total
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

2020

Program
Services

S 7,594,485
1,076,199
51,179

853,429
192,609
524,432

10,292,333

717,571
155,169
95,019
409,308
48,079
78,300
236,318

25,360
51,364
609,498
75,041
273,202
241,427
27,158

S 13,335,147

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Management
and General

S 953,404
140,540
35,001

84,386

505

113,605

1,327,441

34,620

7,675
14,488
33,592
53,008

12,082
37,781
14,795
2,908
20,620
4,217
4,308
28,880
15,420
3,439

s 1,615,774

6

Fundraising

$ 387,778
22,756
7,131
31,656

65

79,701

529,087

8,829
821

2,623
2,779

1,660
940
41,054
32,446
13,887
3,349
10

S 637,485

2020
Total

8,935,667
1,239,495
93,311
969,471
193,179
717,738

12,148,861

34,620
725,246
178,486
129,432
462,316

48,079

93,005
276,878

14,795

29,928

72,924
654,769
112,295
315,969
260,196

30,607

15,588,406

$

2019
Total

8,056,704
994,576

961,026
427,124
655,732

11,095,162

31,699
716,800
152,354
58,038
366,851
88,014
77,872
319,406
20,671
27,857
47,049
585,687
61,853
120,517
89,429
52,772

13,912,031
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WAYPOINT
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

2020 2019
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets S 2,451,124 S 2,404,483
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation 462,316 366,851
Disposals of fixed assets 13,432 -
Realized (gain) loss on investments (27,715) (129,565)
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (2,053,523) (2,805,664)
Change in beneficial interest in trusts (150,770) (157,510)
Change in interest rate swap 210,173 187,055
Inclusion of new entity in consolidated financial statements - 20,085
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 226,820 (247,678)
Grants receivable (166,657) (299,140)
Contributions receivable 79,161 (19,161)
Prepaid expenses (31,439) 46,765
Accounts payable 98,966 (78,303)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (24,812) 81,334
Refundable advance 2,529,309 -
Other liabilities (1,729) (671)
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities 3,614,656 (631,119)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchases of investments (562,926) (511,347)

Proceeds from sale of investments 199,162 699,950

Purchase of fixed assets (452,946) (318,582)
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (816,710) (129,979)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Payment of long-term debt (150,000) (140,000)
Net Cash Used By Financing Activities (150,000) (140,000)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,647,946 (901,098)
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Beginning 177,479 1,078,577
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Ending S 2,825,425 S 177,479

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Interest paid S 276,878 S 319,406

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

1. Organization

Waypoint (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization, founded in 1850, that currently
aids more than 20,000 individuals, statewide, through an array of social services.

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, and can be grouped into the
following categories:

Early Childhood — Family Support & Education Services

Over 4,500 parents received education and support to improve parenting, strengthen
families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy development of children.
Over 500 young children starting life at a disadvantage received critical services to ensure
a good beginning and to optimize their chance for life-long success. Some of the programs
focused on early childhood include:

Early Support and Services

Early Support and Services provides family-centered support and therapies to infants and
toddlers who have developmental disabilities, delays or are at risk of developmental
delays. Services work to optimize babies’ cognitive, physical, emotional and social
development, and chance for success. Services are provided in the child’s natural
environment (home, day care, playground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services

A number of different prevention programs are offered in the home during those critical
early years of a child’s life. A spectrum of services includes support to new mothers and
those struggling to parent; services for children with chronic health conditions; prenatal
services for babies being born at a disadvantage into low-income families; and programs
to encourage positive early parent/child relationships and promote optimal early
childhood development. Services are provided by nurses, social workers, developmental
specialists, occupational therapists, health educators, and home visitors.

Adoption

A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has been forming families through
adoption since 1914. The Organization’s adoption professionals provide home studies and
adoption services for families looking to adopt and provide counselling and support to
birthparents who are considering the adoption option.
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Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs

The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal government,
and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services for children, adolescents
and young adults. Programs are delivered in the home, schools, or community, and
include mental health counseling and substance abuse treatment, as well as a
complex system of family stabilization and preservation programs, child protection
services, and services for at-risk youth. Some of the programs include:

Foster care

The Organization works with the State of New Hampshire in placing children who have
been rescued from dangerous home environments, into safe, stable, loving homes. The
Organization recruits and supports foster families and works to facilitate permanency
for each child.

Home Based Services

The Organization has a number of programs provided in the family home that are
designed to help families who are struggling through daily life - where children are at
risk. Services work to thwart domestic violence, rebuild families, and to improve
family functioning. The Organization empowers families with the skills and resources
they need to provide for their children and become self-sufficient.

Runaway and Homeless Youth Services

The Organization is the sole provider of services for runaway and homeless youth in
Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services features outreach to at-risk
youth that includes survival aid on the streets and basic needs fulfillment at the drop-
in center, as well as crisis intervention, educational and vocational advocacy, housing,
and case management. The Organization also provides behavioral health and
substance use counseling where needed. The Organization works with school systems,
police, and other agencies in addressing the needs of New Hampshire’s homeless
youth.

Senior Care and Independent Living

The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic illness or disability to live
at home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of life. Under the title of Home
Care, services are delivered by homemakers, companions, personal care service
providers, and LNAs. The Organization’s caregivers go to client homes to help with
everything from cooking and cleaning to personal hygiene, medication reminders,
mobility, travel to appointments, paying bills, help with daily tasks, and
communication with family members.

Other Programs

Camp Spaulding

Since 1921, Camp Spaulding has helped campers from all types of backgrounds enjoy
the benefits of a traditional, resident camp experience.
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The New Hampshire Children’s Lobby

Established in 1971, the New Hampshire Children’s Lobby is the advocacy wing of
Child and Family Services. The program’s mission is to improve the lives of children
and families through legislative, judicial, and public policy initiatives. This combination
of advocacy and direct service practice uniquely positions the Organization to serve
the best interest of New Hampshire children.

The Children’s Place and Parent Education Center

The Children’s Place and Parent Education Center (TCP) in Concord, NH provides both
educational and social programs and services to strengthen and enrich the lives of
families with children, two months through six years old.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include Waypoint, Child and Family Realty
Corporation, and The Children’s Place and Parent Education Center, commonly
controlled organizations. All inter-organization transactions have been eliminated.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year
summarized comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, from which
the summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term
purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid
financial instruments invested for long-term purposes, including endowments that
are perpetual in nature, are excluded from this definition.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based
on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable.

Grants Receivable
Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and
a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have

10
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been substantially met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-
reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants, which the incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses and/or the performance of certain requirements have
been met or performed. The allowance for uncollectible grants receivable is based on
historical experience and a review of subsequent collections. Management has
determined that no allowance is necessary.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be
collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value
techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,
amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions is based on
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Contributions receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary.

Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Net investment return/(loss) is reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities and consists of interest and dividend income,
realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment expenses.

The Organization maintains pooled investment accounts for its restricted
endowment. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the individual
endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each endowment to
the total market value of the pooled investment accounts, as adjusted for additions
to or deductions from those accounts.

Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The beneficial
interest in trusts is reported at its fair value, which is estimated as the fair value of the
underlying trust assets. Distributions of income from trust assets are restricted as to
use and are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions until expended
in accordance with restrictions. The value of the beneficial interest in the trusts is
adjusted annually for the change in its estimated fair value. Those changes in value
are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. The assets in the trusts
will never be distributed to the Organization.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and
at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the

11
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straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 50
years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or
loss is included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and
repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
expensed. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its
use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were
no indicators of asset impairment in 2020 or 2019.

Interest-Rate Swap

An interest-rate swap is utilized to mitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payable. The
related liability is reported at fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the Consolidated Statement of
Activities.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain
grantor) restrictions. The Board has designated, from net assets without donor
restrictions, net assets for a board-designated endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity while permitting the Organization to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor-
imposed stipulations or a Board approved spending policy. Donor-imposed
restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time
has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has
been fulfilled, or both.

12
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Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an
unconditional promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received.
Conditional promises to give - that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier and a right of return - are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been met. The Organization records special events revenue equal to the fair
value of direct benefits to donors, and contribution income for the excess received when
the event takes place.

A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/ or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or
grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported
as refundable advances in the Statement of Financial Position.

Revenues derived from providing program services are recognized as the services are
provided. Program services fees paid in advance are deferred to the period to which they
relate. All other amounts paid in advance are deferred to the period in which the
underlying event or rental takes place. Due to the nature and timing of the performance
and/or transfer of services, certain contract liabilities at December 31 of each year are
recognized in the following year.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services,
administration, and fundraising and development activities; however, the
consolidated financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed
services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair
values of the services received. No significant contributions of such goods or services
were received in 2020 or 2019.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated
Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are
attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses

13
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require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated include clerical, IT, and administration, which are allocated to program
and supporting services based primarily on a percentage of personnel costs related to
programs and supporting services.

Measure of Operations

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including
changes in net assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities
consist of those items attributable to the Organization’s ongoing programs and
services and include the Organization’s annual endowment transfer to support
operations. Non-operating activities are limited to resources outside of those
programs and services and are comprised of non-recurring gains and losses on sales
and dispositions, investment income, changes in the value of beneficial interests and
interest rate swaps.

Income Taxes

Waypoint and the Children’s Place and Parent Education Center have been recognized
by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as organizations described in IRC Section
501(c)(3), qualify for charitable contribution deductions, and have been determined
not to be private foundations. Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt from
federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organization described in Section 501(c)(25).

Each entity is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, each is subject to income tax on net income
that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purpose. In
2020 and 2019, the Organizations were not subject to unrelated business income tax
and did not file an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T)
with the IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may
differ from those estimates, and those differences could be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash accounts with financial
institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts.
Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical
collection rates. Investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate,

14



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AEBA-A2DA7A515015

market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the
amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Although the
fair values of investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the
Investment Committee believes that the investment policies and guidelines are
prudent for the long-term welfare of the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions
about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs
that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting
entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability based on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes
the inputs as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and
market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might
be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires
judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency
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of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality,
risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial
Assets, intended to improve transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial
assets, also known as gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of
contributed nonfinancial assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and
equipment; the use of fixed assets or utilities; material and supplies, such as food,
clothing, or pharmaceuticals; intangible assets; and recognized contributed services.
The ASU requires a not-for-profit organization to present contributed nonfinancial
assets as a separate line item in the Statement of Activities, apart from contributions
of cash or other financial assets. It also requires certain disclosures for each category
of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The amendments in this ASU should be
applied on a retrospective basis and will be effective for the Organization for the year
ending December 31, 2022. Early adoption is permitted. The Organization is currently
in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial
statements

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases
with lease terms more than 12 months to be capitalized as a right of use asset and
lease liability on the Statement of Financial Position at the date of lease
commencement. Leases will be classified as either finance leases or operating leases.
This distinction will be relevant for the pattern of expense recognition in the
Statement of Activities. This ASU will be effective for the Organization for the year
ending December 31, 2022. The Organization is currently in the process of evaluating
the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables)
measured at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be
collected. Thus, the income statement will reflect the measurement of credit losses
for newly-recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases
of expected credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be
effective for the Organization for the year ending December 31, 2023. The
Organization is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this
ASU on the financial statements.
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are comprised of the following at December 31, 2020

and 2019:
2020 2019
Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,753,314 S 107,732
Accounts receivable, net 355,608 582,428
Grants receivable 845,159 678,502
Contributions receivable - 79,161
Investments 21,332,022 18,887,020
Beneficial interest held in trusts 1,987,871 1,837,101
Total financial assets 27,273,974 22,171,944
Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 5,343,431 4,829,280
Less:
Net assets with purpose restrictions to be met in less than a year (626,270) (538,689)
Donor-restricted endowment subject to spending policy rate
(4.00% in 2020 and 2019) and appropriation (109,172) (98,140)
Board-designated endowment 18,611,817 15,894,841
Less:
Board-designated endowment annual spending
policy rate (4.00%) (552,828) (563,860)
Total amounts not available to be used within one year 22,666,978 19,523,432
Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next year S 4,606,996 S 2,648,512

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by
the Board to function as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is
restricted for specific purposes. The portion of endowment funds that are perpetual
in nature are not available for general expenditure.

Board-designated endowment is subject to an annual spending rate as determined by
the Board. Although there is no intention to spend from board-designated
endowment (other than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the
Board’s annual budget approval and appropriation), these amounts could be made
available if necessary.

As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a $1,500,000
revolving line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.
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4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net
Fees for service $ 357,308 (1,700) 355,608 $ 584,728 S (2,300) S 582,428
Total $ 357,308 $ (1,700) $ 355,608 S 584,728 S (2,300) S 582,428

5. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at year end relate primarily to prepaid insurance and contracts.

6. Investments

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of mutual funds
totaling $21,332,022 and $18,887,020 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
During 2020 and 2019, the Organization recognized $2,269,978 and $2,935,229,
respectively, of net gains and losses on investments. Of those amounts, $2,269,978
and $2,935,229 was recognized on investments of equity securities held at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Under the terms of the Organization’s line of credit agreement (Note 9), the
Organization has agreed not to pledge these investments as security on any other
debt.

The Organization’s policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of
investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or
appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees was
4.00% of the average fair market value of all investments over the previous twelve
quarters for 2020 and 2019.

As discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organization is
required to report its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based
on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Organization’s valuation
techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments measured
at quoted prices in active markets for identical investments. Level 2 is for investments
measured using inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices for the
identical asset in inactive markets, and for investments measured at net asset value
that can be redeemed in the near term. Level 3 is for investments measured using
inputs that are unobservable, and is used in situations for which there is little, if any,
market activity for the investment.

18



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AE6A-A2DA7A515015

The Organization uses the following ways to determine the fair value of its
investments:

Mutual funds: Determined by the published value per unit at the end of the
last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.

7. Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are administered by the
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds is to provide
assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital improvements to the
camp. The fund resolution provides that distributions from the funds can be made at
the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the fair market value of the funds, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, was
$965,181 and $858,994, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder trusts.
The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts. The fair value
of these beneficial interests is determined by applying the Organization's percentage
interest to the fair value of the trust assets as reported by the trustee.

Percentage
Trust Interest 2020 2019
Greenleaf 100% S 395,121 S 384,004
Spaulding 100% 350,378 332,956
Cogswell 50% 277,191 261,147
Total S 1,022,690 S 978,107

Beneficial interest held in trusts is reported at fair value, which is estimated as the
present value of expected future cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed in
Note 2, the valuation technique used by the Organizationis a Level 3 measure because
there are no observable market transactions.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following at December 31, 2020 and
2019:

2020 2019
Land and land improvements S 1,114,949 S 1,114,949
Buildings and improvements 9,003,702 8,862,063
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 908,672 843,251
Vehicles 86,019 107,581
Software 503,924 377,333
Construction in progress - 5,415
Subtotal 11,617,266 11,310,592
Less accumulated depreciation (5,179,686) (4,850,210)
Total ) 6,437,580 S 6,460,382

Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank. The
line of credit expired on June 30, 2020 and is payable on demand. The line is secured
by a first lien on accounts receivable, double negative pledge on all investments of the
borrower, and carries a variable rate of interest at the Wall Street Journal prime rate
(3.25% at December 31, 2020), adjusted daily. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
balance on this line of credit was S0 and $529, respectively.

Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (the
"Authority") sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services Issue,
Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization to refund its
Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain improvements to the Organization's
facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued with a variable interest rate determined
on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the Bonds, the Organization entered into an interest
rate swap agreement (the "Swap Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counter-
party") for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the
Series 2007 Bonds. The interest rate swap agreement requires the Organization to pay
the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange, the Counterparty will pay the
Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based on the 67% of one month
LIBOR. Counterparty payments to the Organization were intended to offset
Organization payments of variable rate interest to bond holders. Counterparty credit
worthiness and market variability can impact the variable rates received and paid by
the Organization, with the potential of increasing Organization interest payments. As

20



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AE6A-A2DA7TA515015

a result, the cost of the interest rate swap for 2020 and 2019 is added to interest
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature in
2038 and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any, in the fair value of the
swap in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For example, during the bond's 30-
year holding period, the annually calculated value of the swap will be reported as an
asset if interest rates increase above those in effect on the date of the swap was
entered into (and as an unrealized gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities),
which will generally be indicative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on
the swap is below market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the
swap. The swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Consoli-
dated Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect on the
date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that the net fixed
rate the Organization is paying on the swap is above market expectations of rates
during the remaining term of the swap. The annual accounting adjustments of value
changes in the swap transaction are non-cash recognition requirements, the net
effect of which will be zero at the end of the bond's 30-year term. At December 31,
2020 and 2019, the Organization recorded the swap liability position of $1,282,753
and $1,072,580, respectively. During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the
credit rating of the Counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement,
which triggered a mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in whole and a tem-
porary conversion of one-hundred percent of the principal amount to a bank purchase
mode under the terms of said letter of credit reimbursement agreement. Since it
became evident that the credit markets would not soon return to normalcy,
the Organization elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate mode
to a bank purchase mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in
which the Series 2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of
68% of the sum of the adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The
bank purchase mode commenced on July 31, 2009 and expired on July 31, 2014,
however, the expiration date was extended by the Counterparty and the Organization
had the option to convert back to the weekly rate mode. The Series 2007 Bond
documents require the Organization to comply with certain financial covenants. As of
December 31, 2020, the Organization was in compliance with these covenants.
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The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned bonds
payable:

Year Amount
2021 S 160,000
2022 165,000
2023 175,000
2024 180,000
2025 195,000
Thereafter 3,040,000
Total S 3,915,000

Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated June 7,
2005. The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the payment of
interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located in Dover,
New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated May 22,
2007. The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the payment of
interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located in
Manchester, New Hampshire.

Refundable Advance

Refundable advances totaling $2,529,309 at December 31, 2020 are included
primarily of start-up funds and flex funds received in advance from the New
Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services for community-based
voluntary services. Revenues will be recognized as services are performed.

Endowment Funds

The Organization’s endowment consists of various individual funds established for a
variety of purposes. Endowment includes both donor-restricted funds and funds
designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, net assets associated with endowment
funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.
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Board-designated Endowment

As of December 31, 2020, the Board of Trustees had designated $18,611,817 of net
assets without donor restrictions as a general endowment fund to support the mission
of the Organization.

Donor-designated Endowmients

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date for donor-restricted perpetual
endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Organization classifies as perpetually restricted net assets
(a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the endowment made
in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time
the accumulation is added. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment
fund that is not classified as perpetually restricted is classified as net assets with donor
restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization
in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accor-
dance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
(1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-
restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect
of inflation and deflation, (5)the expected total return from income and the
appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Organization, and (7) the
Organization’s investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

The Organization considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less
than the sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to
the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are required to be maintained in
perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The
Organization complies with UPMIFA and has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending
from underwater funds in accordance with prudent measures required under the law.
The Organization had no underwater endowment funds at December 31, 2020 or
2019.

Investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a total
return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance the principal
of the fund and, at the same time, provide a dependable source of support for current
operations and programs. The withdrawal from the fund in support of current
operations is expected to remain a constant percentage of the total fund, adjusted for
new gifts to the fund.
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In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification is
sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation rates are
cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved through investment styles.
Asset allocation parameters have been developed for various funds within the
structure, based on investment objectives, liquidity needs, and time horizon for
intended use.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed
on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction costs. Total return is
defined as dividend or interest income plus realized and unrealized capital
appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.

Spending Policy

The Organization’s spending policy rate in 2020 and 2019 was 4.00%, of the average
total endowment value over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This
includes interest and dividends paid out to the Organization.

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2020 and
changes in endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as
follows:

With Donor Restrictions Total Net
Without Donor Purpose Cumulative Perpetually Endowment
Restrictions Restricted Appreciation Restricted Total Assets

Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 15,894,841  § 538,689 $ 774,084 $ 1,679,406 S 2,992,179 S 18,887,020
Contributions 19,609 - - - - 19,609
Appropriations from endowment (169,104) - (30,058) - (30,058) (199,162)
Temporary appropriation for
purpose-restricted net assets 538,689 (538,689) - (538,689) -
Investment income, net 2,327,782 - 306,663 (805) 305,858 2,633,640
Endowment net assets, end of year $ 18,611,817 § - $ 1050689 S 1678601 S 2,729290 S 21,341,107

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2019 and
changes in endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2019 are as
follows:

With Donor Restrictions Total Net
Without Donor Purpose Cumulative Perpetually Endowment
Restrictions Restricted Appreciation Restricted Total Assets

Endowment net assets, beginning of year § 14,007,444  § - S 453,544 S 1,679,406 S 2,132950 $ 16,140,394
Contributions 66,325 £ - - - 66,325
Appropriations from endowment (625,249) - (74,751) - (74,751) (700,000)
Temporary appropriation for
purpose-restricted net assets (538,689) 538,689 - - 538,689 -
Investment income, net 2,985,010 - 395,291 - 395,291 3,380,301
Endowment net assets, end of year $ 15894841 § 538,689 S 774,084 S 1,679,406 S 2,992,179 $ 183887,020
Net Assets

Net assets without donor restriction are comprised of the following at December 31,
2020 and 2019:
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2020 2019
Undesignated net assets S 104,268 S 884,271
Board designated endowment 18,611,817 15,894,841
Total S 18,716,085 S 16,779,112

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at December 31,
2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Camp S 67,747 S 71,265
Child abuse prevention 67,750 98,265
Family counseling - 9,398
Family resource center 148,763 34,569
Homecare 93,616 111,587
Human trafficking - 10,000
IT and other projects 88,552 108,522
Teen and youth 99,787 95,083
The Children's Place 60,055 -
626,270 538,689
Endowment:
Accumulated earnings restricted by donors for:
General operations 215,094 176,893
Camp operations 307,937 198,902
Other purposes 523,658 398,289
1,050,689 774,084
Original gift restricted by donors for:
General operations 133,407 133,407
Camp operations 548,183 548,988
Other purposes 997,011 997,011
1,678,601 1,679,406
Total restricted endowment 2,729,290 2,453,490
Not subject to spending policy or appropriation:
Beneficial interest in trusts 1,987,871 1,837,101
Total S 5,343,431 S 4,829,280

25



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AE6A-A2DATA515015

15.

16.

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified
by the donors as follows for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Camp S - S 119,417
Child abuse prevention 123,125 150,071
Family counseling 16,954 41,834
Family resource center 30,691 2,211
Homecare 391,706 295,499
Human trafficking 35,000 50,000
IT and other projects 308,910 312,866
Teen and youth 218,467 222,349
The Children's Place 59,697 -
1,184,550 1,194,247
Restricted-purpose spending-rate
distributions and appropriations:
General operations - 11,268
Camp operations - 27,789
Other purposes 30,058 35,694
30,058 74,751
Total S 1,214,608 S 1,268,998

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot
be determined at this time, although the Organization expects such amounts, if any,
to be immaterial.

Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)

In April 2020, the Organization received proceeds in the amount of $1,741,500 under
the Small Business Administration (SBA) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP,
established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES
Act), which was enacted March 27, 2020, provides for loans to qualifying
organizations for amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses. The
loan and accrued interest may be forgiven after eight or twenty-four weeks providing
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the Organization uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains certain payroll levels. The amount of loan
forgiveness will be reduced if the Organization terminates employees or reduces
salaries during the eight or twenty-four week period. Any unforgiven portion of the
PPP loan is payable over two or five years at an interest rate of 1%, with deferral of
payments for the first ten months. The Organization used the proceeds for purposes
consistent with the PPP requirements. As of December 31, 2020, the Organization has
recognized the entire amount of the PPP funds as contribution income and
subsequent to year end the entire amount was forgiven.

Assistance to Individuals

Assistance to individuals is comprised of the following for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019 (rounded to the nearest thousand):

2020 2019
Payment to parents of foster children S 173 S 302
Housing assistance to youth at risk of homelessness 376 144
Gift cards provided to families during holiday season 50 59
Food for at risk youth 13 25
Other assistance such as medical, childcare,
transportation, and family activities 113 186
Total S 725 S 716

Defined Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a defined
contribution plan that all eligible employees may immediately make elective
participant contributions to upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution is permitted
by employees up to limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code and other limitations
specified in the Plan. Contributions made to the plan by the Organization for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled $93,311 and $0, respectively.

Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non-cancellable lease agree-
ments. The Organization also rents additional facilities on a month to month basis.
Rent expense under these agreements totaled $199,910 and $182,763 for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Related Party Transactions

The Organization procures a portion of their legal services from a local law firm that
employs an attorney who also serves on the Organization’s Board of Directors. The
attorney board member does not personally perform the legal services. For the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the total legal expense from related parties was
$4,505 and $15,680, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

CoVID-19

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States (and across the globe) has resulted in
economic uncertainties. The disruption is expected to be temporary, but there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration and scope. The extent of the impact of
COVID-19 on the Organization’s operational and financial performance will depend on
certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on
the individuals served, employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot
be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the
Organization’s financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.

Concentration of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the State of
New Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability to generate resources via grants is
dependent upon the economic health of that area and of the State of New Hampshire.
An economic downturn could cause a decrease in grants that coincides with an
increase in demand for the Organization's services.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 21, 2021, the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

28



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AE6A-A2DA7A515015

WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Child Abuse Adoptions
Teen Treatment Child and Management
Family and Child Care & Family Abuse Early Pregnancy Child Summer Total and 2020
Counseling Youth Services Strengthening Prevention Intervention Homecare Counseling Advocacy Camp Program General Fundraising Total
Salaries and wages S 225,559 $ 877,712 § 98942 $ 1,781,210 $ 2,030,560 $ 384,448 $ 1972400 $ 89,840 S 133,705 $ 109 7,594,485 § 953,404 $ 387,778 § 8,935,667
Employee benefits 22,577 167,089 1,417 261,949 335,582 39,558 234,327 10,559 3,113 28 1,076,199 140,540 22,756 1,239,495
Retirement plan 1,313 8,268 - 12,833 17,170 3,179 5,270 826 2,320 - 51,179 35,001 7,131 93,311
Payroll related costs 29,057 96,050 7,011 202,468 231,330 45,300 222,488 8,704 11,014 7 853,429 84,386 31,656 969,471
Mileage reimbursement 1,243 26,162 19 84,697 26,123 7,486 46,544 266 69 - 192,609 505 65 193,179
Contracted services 4,767 54,403 26,422 73,707 269,598 55,957 25,255 11,230 3,078 15 524,432 113,605 79,701 717,738
Accounting - - - - - - = - - z - 34,620 - 34,620
Assistance to individuals 309 314,895 307 199,643 179,327 9,209 2,152 11,112 617 = 717,571 7,675 - 725,246
Communications 2,712 33,035 3,849 40,739 45,386 5,358 19,809 2,088 2,116 77 155,169 14,488 8,829 178,486
Conferences, conventions,
meetings 3in 12,323 2,765 19,038 32,639 8,557 13,770 1,099 1,639 18 95,019 33,592 821 129,432
Depreciation 634 112,946 56,706 59,473 60,322 19,196 19,119 7,924 3,386 69,602 409,308 53,008 S 462,316
In-kind contributions - 31,458 - - 16,621 - - - - - 48,079 - - 48,079
Insurance 1,925 11,834 - 26,461 22,544 4,379 9,367 881 903 6 78,300 12,082 2,623 93,005
Interest 1,865 34,373 1,593 65,002 68,960 40,624 14,662 5,685 3,554 - 236,318 37,781 2,779 276,878
Legal - - - - # - - - - - - 14,795 - 14,795
Membership dues 694 1,647 115 4,147 10,062 948 7.295 202 248 2 25,360 2,908 1,660 29,928
Miscellaneous 4,343 18,544 1,627 5,939 9,748 1,061 9,776 - 318 8 51,364 20,620 940 72,924
Occupancy 17,806 168,986 21,080 169,277 120,447 20,386 70,817 7,358 10,279 3,062 609,498 4,217 41,054 654,769
Printing and publications 256 4,493 1,101 5,297 56,028 2,797 3,340 1,551 176 2 75,041 4,808 32,446 112,295
Rental and equipment
maintenance 1,181 27,534 27,119 43,443 120,582 32,374 8,425 4,339 2,204 273,202 28,880 13,887 315,969
Supplies 5,050 52,001 8,896 41,148 108,064 6,302 17,261 1,542 907 255 241,427 15,420 3,349 260,196
Travel 262 15,262 160 3,541 4,775 519 2,389 113 136 1 27,158 3,439 10 30,607
Total S 324,724 $ 2,069,015 $ 259,129 § 3,106,013 $ 3,765868 S 687,638 S _ 2,704,466 $ 165319 S 179,782 $ 73,193 13,335,147 S 1615774 $ 637,485 S 15588406
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Child Abuse Adoptions
Teen Treatment Child and Management
Family and & Family Abuse Early Pregnancy Child Summer Total and 2019
Counseling Youth Strengthening Prevention Intervention Homecare Counseling Advocacy Camp Program General Fundraising Total
Salaries and wages S 392,683 $ 811,578 S 1,797,236 $ 1565113 $ 359,348 $ 1,758488 S 88632 S 121,616 S 7,144 S 6,901,838 S 814,197 § 340,669 $ 8,056,704
Employee benefits 36,382 123,479 255,330 224,471 31,739 198,672 11,097 3,730 1,221 886,121 84,083 24,372 994,576
Payroll related costs 55,625 95,590 231,536 195,954 42,973 220,779 9,016 9,631 629 861,733 72,205 27,088 961,026
Mileage reimbursement 4,517 37,961 230,948 66,254 21,254 63,078 1,726 203 53 425,994 931 199 427,124
Contracted services 10,066 53,084 86,374 138,533 25,490 26,769 6,713 5,386 174,591 527,006 74,153 54,573 655,732
Accounting - - - - - - - - - - 31,699 - 31,699
Assistance to individuals 57 231,226 355,852 115,078 8 - 7,614 - 6,965 716,800 - - 716,800
Communications 4,283 37,260 37,355 35,008 5,136 16,498 1,949 1,313 453 139,255 8,358 4,741 152,354
Conferences, conventions,
meetings 1,480 5,540 4,918 8,887 868 9,187 350 16,987 272 48,489 5,949 3,600 58,038
Depreciation 8,408 130,051 49,246 44,442 8,408 8,408 4,804 2,402 70,762 326,931 39,920 - 366,851
In-kind contributions - 45,647 42,367 - - - - - - 88,014 - - 88,014
Insurance 4,078 11,053 21,357 17,108 3,377 7,044 703 760 210 65,690 9,585 2,597 77,872
Interest 13,973 39,926 81,848 73,863 13,974 13,974 7,985 3,993 1,996 251,532 67,874 - 319,406
Legal (7,826) - - - - 7,826 - - - - 20,671 - 20,671
Membership dues 5,699 1,530 2,425 8,235 385 3,466 170 767 112 22,789 1,916 3,152 27,857
Miscellaneous (28,712) 3,212 3,536 8,736 2,618 33,253 6,686 234 658 30,221 14,869 1,959 47,049
Occupancy 58,958 191,947 163,147 101,733 11,823 6,880 3,105 3,915 1,628 543,136 29,481 13,070 585,687
Printing and publications 1,565 4,042 3,924 10,568 1,356 5,734 1,020 951 158 29,318 2,803 29,732 61,853
Rental and equipment
maintenance (692) 14,221 28,684 26,300 4,936 11,373 2,754 1,414 756 89,746 24,229 6,542 120,517
Supplies 10,530 32,348 19,132 13,321 1,185 3,297 502 574 75 80,964 3,366 5,099 89,429
Travel 3,779 22,015 8,192 14,803 851 - 112 438 424 50,614 2,149 9 52,772
Total S 574,853 S 1,891,710 $ 3,423,407 $_ 2668407 S 535729 S 2394726 S5 154938 S 174314 S 268,107 S5 12,086,191 5 1,308,438 $ 517,402 $ 13,912,031

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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464 Chestnut St, Manchester, NH. 03105/
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Professional Profile

A seasoned leader with more than 18 years of senior level non-profit management experience.

Strong business acumen with emphasis on developing processes fo ensure the alignment of
strategy, operations, and outcomes with a strength based approach to leadership development.
Collaborative leader using systemic and strategic framework in program development, supervision

and conflict resolution.

Professional Experience

Waypoint, formerly Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
Manchester, NH December 2013- Present

~ President and CEO
Responsible for program planning and development, insuring that Waypoint meets the community

needs.
Advance the public profile of Waypoint by developing innovative approaches and building productive

relationships with government, regional and national constituencies.
Acts as advisor fo the Board of Directors and maintains relationships with the regional Boards

= Responsible for all aspects of financial planning, sustainability and oversight of Waypoint's assefs

e Work with Development staff and Board of Directors to design and implement all fundraising
activities, including cultivation and solicitation of key individuals, foundations and corporations

Riverside Community Care
Dedham, MA 2009- 2013
~ Division Director, Child and Family Services

= Responsible for strategic vision, planning and implementation of the programmatfic, operational and
financial sustainability of a $17M division with more than 300 employees.

« In partnership with The Guidance Center, Inc.'s board of directors, played leadership role in
successfully merging with Riverside Community Care, through a process that involved strategic
planning, analysis and selection of a viable pariner.

» Provide supervision fo managers using a strength based approach and & collaborative coaching
model to leadership development.

The Guidance Center, Inc.
Cambridge, MA 1998 ~ 2009
~ Chief Operating Officer 2007 - 2009
e Hired initially as Director of an intensive home-based family program and through successive
promotions became responsible for all operations in the organization.
» Responsible for supervision of Division Directors, strategic planning and development of new
initiatives.
= Developed strategic relationships with state and local funders, and partnered with community
agencles to support the healthy growth of children and families,
Private Practice in Psychotherapy and Clinical Consultation
1892 - 1998

Madrid, Spain
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Universidad Pontificia de Comillas
Madrid, Spain 1991 - 1998

~Adjunct Faculty
Taught graduate level courses in Family and Couples Therapy program

Practicum program supervisor: Supervised first year Master's Degree students through live
supervision in the treatment of multi-problem families,

Centro Médico-Psicopedagégico
Madrid, Spain . ' 1994 - 1997

~Clinical Coordinator/Director of Training.
Member of a multi-disciplinary team that provided assessment and treatment to familles victims of

terrorlsm and had developed Post Traumatic Stress Disorder.
ITAD (Institute for Alcohol and Drug Treatment),
Madrid, Spain 1991- 1994

~ Senjor Prug and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Afcofiol Program

=~ Provided evaluation and treatment for chemically dependent adults and their families.

~ Senjor Family Therapist, Couples and Family Therapy Program

Worked as a family therapist in the evaluation and treatment of adolescents and families.

Gharles River Health Management
Boston, MA 1989 - 1991

~ Senfor Family Therapist, Home Based Family Treatment Program.

Edueation

Graduate Cerfificate of Business
University of Massachuseits, Lowell, 2000,

Master’s Degree in Education

Counseling Psychology Program. Boston University, 1989.

B.A. in Clinical Psychology
Universidad Pontificla de Comillas, Madrid, Spain. 1988

Publications

2009  Ayers,S & Alvarez de Toledo, B. Communily Based Mental Health with Chlidren and Families. InA.
R. Roberts (Ed.) ,Social Worker's Desk Reference (2™ ed.),New York: Oxford University Press, 2009

2006  Topical Discussion: Advancing Communify-Based Clinjcal Practice and Research: Learning in the
Field. Presented at the 19" Annual Research Conference: A System of Care for Children’s Mental
Health: Expanding the Research Base, February 2008, Tampa, FL.

2001 Lyman, D.R.; Siegel, R.; Alvarez de Toledo, B.; Ayers, S.; Mikula, J. How to be little and sfili think
big: Creating a grass roofs, evidence based system of care. Symposium presented at the 14t
Annual Research Conference in Children’s Mental Health, Research and Training Center for

Children's Mental Health, February 2001, Tampa, FL.
Lyman, D.R., B. Alvarez de Toledo, The Ecology of intensive community based intervention. In

2006
Lightburn, A., P. Sessions. Handbook of Community Based Clinical Practice. Oxford University

Press, 2006, England.
Lyman, D.R., B. Alvarez de Toledo (2001) Risk factors and treatment oufcomes in a strategic

2001
Intensive family program. In Newman, .G, C. Liberfon, K. Kutash and R. Friedman, (Eds.) A System
of Care for Children’s Mental Health: Expanding the Research Base (2002), pp. 55-58. Research
and Training Center for Children's Mental Health, University of South Florida, Tampa, FL.

1994-98 Research papers and professional presentations in peer reviewed journals in Spain

Languages

Fluent in Spanish, French and Italian.
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COLLEEN M. IVES

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Proactive executive with a formidable record of driving systemic change and business expansion. Nimble
administrator with strategic planning, business process improvement, cost controls and performance management
experience. Collaborative leader with inspirational and decisive management style who achieves exceptional,

rather than expected, results. Catalyst for open communications towards a climate of learning to benefit company
and individuals.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

WAYPOINT, Manchester, NH e 2018-Present
Statewide private nonprofit that works to advance the well-being of children and families through an array of

community-based services.

Chief Operating Officer
» Oversees all aspects of program delivery including; fiscal and personnel manage

program development

ment, quality assurance and

ROCKPORT MORTGAGE CORPORATION, Gloucester, MA ¢ 2008-2017
Leading national lender of US Housing & Urban Development insured commercial loans in healthcare, multifamily

and affordable housing sectors.

Vice President, Operations & Quality Control
o Reportto principals with overall responsibility for achieving strategic objectives through oversight of the day-to-

day operations of five multi-disciplinary underwriting teams by providing support at the transactional level as

well as in the development of procedures and operating practices o match RMC's continued growth.

+ Ensure RMC'S compliance with their federally mandated Quality Control Plan through employee development
initiatives, monitoring of RMC’S operational practices while integrating new HUD directives into RMC’S existing

best practices.

IVES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATES, Manchester, NH o 2005-2016
Consultancy providing strategic planning and leadership development to public, private and nonprofit companies

throughout New England.

Principal
Design and facilitate customized corporate retreats, including strategic planning sessions, executive and Board of

Directors’ training and development, creation or re-affirmation of vision, mission and values and efforts to re-align
leadership around key priorities and future direction of the organization. Integrate opportunities to shift
organizational culture to more open and candid communications.

o Ledan 18-month comprehensive change initiative that:
o Resulted in the development of a transition plan for the assimilation of an Interim Executive Director
including an operations plan that aimed to recalibrate the culture;
» Transformed climate of accountability for @ $55M client by implementing Balanced Scorecard strategic
measurement system. Designed, coordinated and facilitated on-site internal and external analysis of 11 retail
locations in 9 states, analyzing threats and weaknesses in business to build a platform for growth.

CAREER NOTE: Concurrent with consulting enterprise (2006 — 2010), designed and taught introductory and upper level

psychology and sociology courses at Granite State College in Goncord, Manchester and Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

COLLEEN M. IVES e Page 2 = cives2605@gmail.com
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING, Concord, NH ¢ 2001-2005
Statewide nonprofit offering long-term care, em ployment, transportation, advocacy, and other community-based

services.

Acting Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
Led internal operations, including service and program delivery, finance, human resources, fundraising and

marketing. Transformed organization’s culture by promoting a climate of excellence, systemic solutions and

learning that benefited the organization and individual employees. Evaluated operational results and facilitated

business processes and controls that promoted efficiency and internal information flow. Developed short- and
long-range operating plans. Supported up to 14 management-level employees, staff of 90, and $13M annual
operating budget. Held complete performance management authority as well as autonomy to engage in private
and state/federal contracts.

o Increased revenue by 78% with more effective grant administration, successful applications for new
competitive grants, initiating a comprehensive development / fundraising plan, and increasing the fee-for-
service lines of business.

o Increased consumers served from 400 to 3,000+ individuals within three-year period by restructuring existing

programs, developing new programs and increasing program accountability with monthly management reports.

Established foundation for 36-month capacity building plan to enhance infrastructure and overall operations by

conducting full organizational audit and successfully presenting to Board of Directors.

o FExpanded services and leveraged long-term grant opportunity through company acquisition. Successfully
integrated organizational cultures and business practices, including human resource policies, management
teams and compensation/benefits.

« Recommended, designed and implemented internal contrals and operating procedures for all departments

(Human Resources, Finance, Public Relations/ Development, Long-Term Care, Community Living and

Employment Services).

Increased efficiency, raised credibility of financlal reporting and reduced headcount by implementing state of

the art technology with expertise of retained IT consultant.

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR
BLIND AND VISUALLY IMPAIRED, Concord, NH e 1992-2000

Statewide organization providing Registry of Legal Blindness, Sight Services for Independent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program.

Statewide Director
Managed professional staff of 8 fo deliver services that included 15 statewide rehabilitative support groups, career

counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises in State and Federal buildings.

« Awarded $1.2M 3-year federal grant to provide peer support services in 15 locations across the state

» Led Department to highest rank in standards and benchmarks among 7 other regional offices.

» Enhanced team atmosphere by integrating 4 distinct statewide programs into a cohesive unit.

« Cultivated relationships and formal partnerships with various stakeholders in the statewide network of social
and human services and employment arenas.

EDUCATION

Doctorate in Human and Organizational Systems
Master of Arts in Human Development
Fielding Graduate University, Santa Barbara, California

Master of Arts/CAGS in Rehabilitation Counseling
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and Philosophy
Assumption College, Worcester, Massachusetts
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ERIN J. KELLY

EDUCATION

Union Institute and University - Vermont College, Brattleboro, Vermont
2004-2006  Master of Arts, Psychology and Counseling

Gordon College - Wenham, Massachusetts
1997-2001  Bachelor of Arts, Psychology
1997-2001  Bachelor of Arts, Youth Ministry

LICENSE

Board of Mental Health Practice State of New Hampshire,
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor, License # 722

PROFESSIONAL APPOINTMENTS/MEMBERSHIPS/ACCOMPLISHMENTS

L]

e © © @ © o

2018-Present New Hampshire Interagency Council on Homelessness — Governor
appointed

2017-Present Co-Chair New Hampshire Homeless Youth Subcommittee

2016 Workshop Presenter National Runaway and Homeless Youth Grantee's Conference
2016 United States Family and Youth Services Bureau Enhancing Sustainability Project
Member

2015-2018 New Hampshire Attorney General’s Task Force on Abuse and Neglect
2014-Present New Hampshire's Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force
2010-Present New Hampshire Balance of State Continuum of Care

2008-2017 New Hampshire Homeless Teen Task Force

2008-Present Manchester Continuum of Care (Chair since 2016)

2012-2014 New Hampshire Attorney General’'s Commission on Human Trafficking and
Sexual Exploitation — representative of youth services

2011-2013 New Hampshire State Suicide Prevention Council — Governor appointed
representative of youth services

2012 United States Family and Youth Services Bureau Focus Group on Runaway and
Homeless Youth Program Outcomes — Regional representative

2010-2012 New Hampshire HIV and STD Division Community Planning Group —
representative of youth services

2008-2011 New Hampshire Alcohol, Tobacco, and other Drug Service Providers
Association — representative of youth prevention services

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

January 2014-Present
Program Director — Waypoint (formerly Child and Family Service of New Hampshire),

Manchester, NH

o Direct the operations of the Human Trafficking Program (started in 2016)
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Erin J. Kelly

Direct the operations of the continuum of programs serving runaway and homeless
youth including Basic Center Programs, Street Outreach Programs, Drop-in Services,
Transitional Living Programs, and Maternity Group Home Programs statewide.
Provide all administrative and clinical supervision for Program Managers.

Provide oversight for a staff of 20.

Develop and implement strategic plan for all programs including facilitating staff
participation, presenting to agency operations team, incorporating feedback, and
identifying and bringing to fruition prioritized goals

Oversee local, state, and federal grant applications, reporting and contracts
Develop and manage program budgets

Provide program evaluation and outcome data

February 2010-January 2014
Program Manager - Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH

Manage the day-to-day operations of programs serving runaway and homeless youth
including 2 Basic Center Programs, 2 Street Outreach Programs, and a drop-in facility.
Provide all administrative and clinical supervision for staff of ten

Develop and implement strategic plan for all programs including facilitating staff
participation, presenting to agency operations team, incorporating feedback, and
identifying and bringing to fruition prioritized goals

Facilitate the professional growth of staff by providing guidance around goal
development and relevant learning opportunities

Oversee local, state, and federal grant applications, reporting and contracts

Develop and manage program budgets

Provide program evaluation and outcome data

November 2008-February 2010
Runaway and Homeless Youth Program & Student Assistance Program Supervisor -

Child and Family Services of NH, Manchester, NH

Supervised the day-to-day operations of a substance use prevention program in four
high schools.

Provided administrative and clinical supervision for staff of four

Established and maintained relationships with community organizations, key partners,
and school department administration

Completed proposals and reports for all federal grants and state contracts

Provided evaluation from an evidence-based intervention perspective

July 2006-November 2008
Home-Based Family Therapist - Child & Family Services of NH, Manchester, NH

Provided court-ordered family counseling services and case management to families
involved with the juvenile justice system or child protective services

Advocated for youth and families in the educational system, court setting, and within
community services

Provided referrals for relevant community services when appropriate

Developed and implemented client-centered treatment plans to address youth and
family functioning and maintained on-going documentation to measure progress

Recent trainings & certifications, transcripts, job reviews, and references available upon request.
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Erin J. Kelly

Developed and implemented individual treatment plans
Assessed client’s needs, performed research relevant to best practice strategies for
service needs, and worked with clients to incorporate services that accomplished goals

Maintained clear and concise documentation of client’s progress

May 2002-August 2002
Relief Youth Care Worker - Rumford Group Home, Inc., Roy House, Dixfield, ME

Provided direct care of sexual reactive males ages 7-12 who resided in residential

setting
Built therapedutic, healthy, and professional relationships with the males in the program
Role-modeled appropriate and healthy hygiene, interactions, touch, and coping

strategies
Guided youth to participate in program and work on individual treatment goals

May 2001-August 2002
Crisis Stabilization Youth Worker - Rumford Group Home, Inc.
Turner Family Support center, Turner, ME

e © o o

Provided direct care of youth ages 5-17 residing in short-term, crisis residential facility
Screened referrals for participation in the program

Provided strength-based emotional support and informal counseling to youth ages 5-17
Performed clear and concise documentation of observed behaviors, medications
administered, eating and sleeping patterns, strengths, skills, and the progress of each

youth on a daily basis
Developed and implemented individual treatment plans for youth in the program

Recent trainings & certifications, transcripts, job reviews, and references available upon request.
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Waypoint

Key Personnel

% charged

to this

Name Title Salary Grant
Borja Alvarez de Toledo CEO 185,411 0
Colleen Ives COO0 127,338 0
Erin Kelly Director 82,388 0
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AUG16’21 p11 2:50 RCUD

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
' DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9474  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

Karen E. Hebert
Director

August 5, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
: REQUESTED ACTION

‘Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing. contract with Waypoint (VC#177166), Manchester, NH to
continue providing a Rapid Re-Housing Program that serves youth at risk for, or experiencing
homelessness, by increasing the price limitation by $9,936 from $575,720 to $585,656 with no
change to the contract completion date of May 31, 2022 effective upon Governor and Council
vapproval 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Councal on June 5, 2019, item #33.
" |t was subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 20, 2020, item #9, and
most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on March 24, 2021, item #7.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2022 with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fi scal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. ‘

. 05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

R

State ' " Increased .
" Class / Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased)
Year Account Number Budgp! Amotnt Budget
Contracts for $15,746 $0| - $15,746
2019 | 102-500731 Prog Svc TBD
' Contracts for $186,658 $0| $186,658
2020 | 102-500731 Prog Svc 8D . )
3 Contracts for , $202,213 $0 $202,213
2021 | 102-500731 Prog.Sve TBD .
' Contracts for $171,103 $0 $171,103
2022 102-509731 Prog Sve TBD
Grants for o $0 $9,936 $9,936
2022 | 074-500589 | Public Asst 8D
and Relief
Total |  $575,720 $9,936 $585,656

The Department of Health and IHuman Services’ Mission isto Jjoin communities and families
“in providing opporlunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councll
Page 20f 3

EXPLANATION

Annually, HUD releases a Continuum of Care Program competition. As part of this
competition, the Department (as the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State Continuum
of Care) is required to issue a Request for Proposals based on the HUD application. HUD issues
strict guidelines that specify the eligible activities, populations to be served, expected performance

. outcomes, and time frames for the competition. All project applications, new and renewal, are
scored based on a Rank and Review Policy and scoring tools that are created to match the HUD
Notice of Funding Availability. Project applications are ranked in order of score from highest to
lowest, and are funded based on this ranking process. Low performing projects are issued a
corrective action plan and are given a year to correct performance issues. This process is guided
by a Reallocation Policy, as required by HUD. All project applications and individual project score
are reviewed by HUD. HUD informs the Continuum of Care of the funding amount for all renewal
projects. Funding for new projects is determined by the amount of bonus funding, if any, is made
available by HUD.

The purpose of this request is to continue a Rapid Re-Housing (RRH), Permanent Housing
Program that delivers rental assistance and supportive services to participants experiencing
homelessness to increase the ability of participants to live more independently. The request adds
funds included in the Notice of Federa! Award dated April 5, 2021.

Approximately ten (10) participants who are between the ages of 18 and 24 years will be
served from June 1, 2021 to May 31, 2022,

The Contractor engages youth referred by the coordinated entry system in order to
determine Rapid Re-Housing eligibility. The Contractor makes referrals to ensure immediate
basic needs of individuals are met. Once enrolled, case management staff work with participants
to assess current housing and service needs as well as barriers to attaining housing. Project staff
coordinate with community resources to connect youth to resources that may assist youth with
increasing income, which may include Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF); job

. readiness programs; and Social Security benefits.

Outcomes of services provided include youth moving into and retaining permanent

housing as well as youth connecting: with community and mainstream services to increase
independence and household income, which may result in sustaining permanent housing.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following

ways: C

¢ Annual compliance reviews that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

o Statistical reports that include various demographic information and income and
expense reports, including match dollars. :

¢ The NH Homeless Management Information System is the primary reporting tool
for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through this
contract,

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, Rapid Re-Housing and
supportive services may not be available to runaway and homeless youth in their communities,
which could result in an increase in demand for services from local municipalities:
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councit ]
Page 3 of 3 : &

Area served: Statewide
Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN # NH0115L1T002002

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, Generél Funds will not
be requested to support this program. :

Respectfully submitted,

e’ fpubinitlcs

Lor A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampéhire
Department of Health and Human Servnces
Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or Department") and Waypoint
("the Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on June 5, 2019, (Item #33), as amended on May 20, 2020, (Item #9), and as amended
on March 24, 2021, (Item #7), the Contractor.agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form' P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation,
or modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$585,656 ‘

2. Modify Exhibit' A, Scope of Services, Sectlon 4. Contract Administration, by adding
Subsection 4.3 to read:

4.3. The Contractor shall actively participate in an annual review conducted by the

.. Department, either onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department to ensure

compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations. The
Contractor shall:

4.3.1. Ensure the Department has access to barticipant files.

4.3.2. Ensure a minimum of one month of financial data is available to the
Department. -

4.3.2. Provide other information, as requested by the Department, that assists in
determining contract compliance.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Rapid Re-
Housing Program Funding, Subparagraph 1.2., to read: -

1.2 This Agreement is funded by funds made available under the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. 100% Federal Funds, Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing, as awarded on
January 14, 2019, February 6, 2019, March 17, 2020, and April, 4 2021 by the
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD), CFDA 14.267, FAIN
NH0115L1T001800, NHO115L1T001901, NHO115L1T002002.

1.2.2. Total Amount of Continuum of Care not to exceed the amount specified in Form

:Ds
55-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A03 Waypoint Contractor Initials
d 87172021

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 4 Date
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P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation.
1.2.3.  Funding allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program: -

1.2.3.1. Rental Assistance: $343,978
1.2.3.2. Case Management: $5,298
12.33.  Transportation: $494
1.2.3.2. Supportive Services: $208,506
1.2.3.3. Administrative Expenses: $27,380
1.2.3.4. Total Allocation Amount:  $585,656

4. Modify Exhibit B-4, Budget Sheet, Amendment #2, SFY 2022, 7/1/21 to 5/3172'2, by
replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-4, Budget Sheet, Amendment #3, SFY 2022 (7/1/21
to 5/31/22), which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

: :DS
$8-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A03 Waypoint ' Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 " Page20f4 ' Date 8/11/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOFI. the parties have set their hands as of the date writ_ten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:
8/11/2021 C » Kazja fox
Date ' Name. Ratja Fo

Title: oirector

Waypoint

) . DocuSigned by: ’
8/11/2021 bb 1a ﬂw AL mﬂb
Date ' , Na;m!eE::Lﬁm. ®ATvarez de Toledo

Title: president and CEO o

S$5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A03 ) Waypoint
A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

* DocuSigned by: : .
8/13/2021 . | C(%.m'
Date Name: cat erine Pinos

Title: attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: -{date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ‘Name:
Title:
5§5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A03 Waypoint

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4



DocusSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AE6A-A2DATA515015

DocuSign Envelope 10: FEOGBAI-CESS-4841-BAAB-69F21E4DFBS1

Exhibit B-4 Budget
Amendment #3

Contractor Name:

Waypoint

Budget Request for: $5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A03

Budget Period: SFY 2022 (7/1/21-5/30/22)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CoC Funds .
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $ 109,189.00 | $~ - |s - |s - IS - s - |s 109.189.00 | $ - s -
Supportive Services $ 63.71000 | $ s - 1s - |3 S - s 63.710.00 | $ - |s ! -
Administration $ 814000 - - Is - is - |s - 1S - s 8.140.00 | $ - |s -
25% Required Match: H 4728500 | S s $ 47,295.00 | $ - |s - 1 - |s -- |3 -

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE]| § 228,334.00 | § - |s - |s 47,295.00 | § - s - |3 181,039.00 | § - |s -

Waypoint

$5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A03
Exhibit B-4 Budget Amendment #3

Page 10of 1

Contractor Initials, @

Dat

8/11/2021
-]
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

Lori A. Shibloette .
Commlssloner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 01301
603-271-9474  1-800-852.3345 Ext. 9474
Chruﬂn';hl;'stz:bnkﬂo Fax: 603-2714230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-1964 www.dbhs.oh.gov
March 8, 2021

His Excellency, Govermnor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

- REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Waypoint (VC#177168),
Manchester, NH to continue providing a Rapid Re-Housing Program serving New Hampshire
Runaway and Homeless Youth, by increasing the price limitation by $186,658 from $389,062 to
$575,720 and by extending the completion date from April-30, 2021 to May 31, 2022 effective
May 1, 2021 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on June 5, 2019, item #33
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 20, 2020, item #9.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropnatson of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needad and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-SHELTER PROGRAM

W

State | Class/ Class Title | Job Current | increased | Revised
Fiscal { Account " Number | Budget (Decreased) | Budget
Year Amount
2019 | 102-500731 | Contracts for [ TBD $15,746 $0 $15,746
Prog Svec
2020 | 102-500731 | Contracts for | TBD $186,658 $0 $186,658
‘ Prog Sve ' _
2021 | 102-500731 | Contracts for | TBD $186,658 $15,555 $202,213
Prog Svc
2022 | 102-500731 | Contracts for | TBD $0 $171,103 $171,103
Prog Svc)
TOTAL $389,082 $186,658 $575,720

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achicve health and independence.
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His Excoliency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councll
Page 20f 3

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was origmally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. As part of
the application process, the Depariment conducts a request for proposals and the selected

. organization is named in the application to the US Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD).

Annually, HUD, oversees a Continuum of Care Program competitive application
process. As part of this process, the Department s required to provide HUD with each potential
vendor, and HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process, HUD directs
the Department to provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors. -

The purpose of this request Is to continue a Rapid Ro-Housmg (RRH), Permanent Housing
Program that delivers rental assistance and supportive services to participants.

Approximately ten (10) individuals who are between the ages of 18 and 24 years will be
. served from May 1, 2021 to May 31, 2022

The Contractor engages youth referred by coordinated entry staff in order to determine
Rapid Re-Housing eligibility. The Contractor makes referrals to ensure immediate basic needs
of individuals are met. Once-enrolled, case management staff work with participants to assess
current housing and service needs as well as barriers to attaining housing. Project staff coordinate
with community resources to connect youth 1o resources that may assist youth with increasing
income, which.may include Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF); job feadineas-
programs; and Social Security benefits.

Outcomes of services provided include youth moving into and retaining permanent
‘housing as well as youth connecting with community and mainstream' services to increase
independence and household income, which may result in sustaining permanent housing.

The Depanment ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following
‘ways:
. Annual compliance reviews are performed that include the collection of data relating
to oomphance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

o Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors,
including various demographic information and income and expense reports.
. including match do!lars

o The Contractor i is requ:red to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required
by law to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management
Information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and sctmtles of
shelter and housing programs funded through this contract.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2,
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreamem of the pamas and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to Tenew services for the remaining 13 months available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, Rapid Re-Housing and
supportive services may not be available to runaway and homelsss youth in their communities,
which could result in an Increase in demand for services from local welfare authorities.
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" His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cwncll
Page 3 of3

Area served: Statewide
Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.267/ FAIN# TBD

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

- Respectfully submitted,

e

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner:
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State of New Hampshire
Depanment of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care Program contract is by and betwéen the State of New
- Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or "Deparlmeni") and Waypoint ("the
Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Councit
on June 5, 2019 (Item #33),-as amended on May 20, 2020 (Item #9), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified’ in the Contract as amended in
consideration of certain sums specified; and ;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Prowsnons Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Rewslons to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal; the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in.the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

~ May 31, 2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$575,720

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Rapid Re-Housing
Program Funding, Subparagraph 1.2., to read:

1.2 This Agreement is funded by funds made avallabie under the Catalog of Federal Domestnc
_Assistance (CFDA), as follows: ;

1.2.1. 100% Federal Funds, Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing, as awarded on January
14, 2019 and February 6, 2019, by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban
Development (HUD), CFDA 14.267, FAIN NHO115L1T001800.

1.2.2. Total Amount of Continuum of Care not to exceed $575,720. ‘
1.2.3.  Funding allocatlon under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program: .

'

1.2.31. . Rental Assistance: $334,042
1.2.3.2. Case Management: $5,298
1.2.3.3. Transponation: $494
1.2.3.2. Supportive Services: $208,506
1.2.3.3. Administrative Expenses: $27,380
1.2.3.4. Total Allocation Amount: $575,720

4. Modify Exhibit B-3, Budget, Amendment #1, SFY 2021, 7/1/20 to 4/30/21, by replacing in its
entirety with Exhibit B-3, Budget Sheet, Amendment #2, SFY 2021 (7/1/20 to 6/30/21), which is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit B-4, Budget Sheet, Amendment #2, SFY 2022 (7/1121 to 5/31/22), which attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein. ’

[ e

3/1/2021

Waypoinl Contractor Inllials
S§S-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A02 Page10f3 . Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective May 1, 2021 or upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

. . DocuSignad by:
3/2/2021° | Christing Santanitllo
Date Name: Christine Santaniello

Title:  pirector

Waypoint

3/1/2021
Date

Waypoinl Amendment #2
$5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A02 Page 20l 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

execution. ; ‘ _
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
Doculd by
3/4/2021 565:5‘-
Date Name: F1e Pinos

Title:  attorney
I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of -
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date : Name:
Title:
Waypoint Amendment #2

5§5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-A02 . " Page3ol3
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Exhink B-), Budget Shest, Amenamart §7

New Hempshire Depertment of Hestih &nd Human Services )
Contracion Mams: Waypolnt
Budiget Requee! for: 35-2019-8KS-84-PERMA-77-A02
Busgel Periad: <Y 2021 {1/1/18-6/30/11)
[CoC Funch
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Acthvity Name BUOGET Y10 MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET - YID MONTHLY
ertwl Assiatsrce s 1z rmes s . - B -1 T 1) » I8 B urmecs|s - s -
[Sipportive Sarvioss 3 Ta.7M.00 |1 - N -] e [ - 18- ° 1| rsmacals - Bl B
3 e 1 : - s - 1s - 3. -1s tcom|s - Is -
5% R Matciy 3 sh.eca00 8. = - I3 - szwacmls 3., 3 - 13 - 13 3
TOTAL HUD FUNDIBAMLANCE | 3 213.171.00 |4 - e 3 sivsaes |s [ . s rermsee | s .
Waypoirt ’ .

Extitd 33, Budget Sheel. Amencment 2 .
Page bof i - n..lﬂneu
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Extitd 34, Budget Sheet, Amerciment 12

Naw Hempahire Depariment of Heafth and Humen Services
Contracior Marme: Waynolat
Buoget Requerst lor: $3-70 13-ERS-S4PERIRA-27-AS2 i
Baxiget Perdod: $FY 2022 [1/1/21-5/30/22)
CoC Funds
COosv SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUOGET MONTHLY BUOGET WONTHLY BUOGET Y10 MONTHLY
[Rertsl Amistaros 3 nrasl 1% = s - = 13 s - S ] e ls < 3 LTy -
S1p0orve Servioes 3 e v - s - | {8 1) arwm|s s -
= ) Mresse]s 3 = 3 o £ 3 & ] -am000 ]y s .
25% Required sty 3 sswm|y i3 . ;s wupomls 3 - $: - o - 15 e - .

TOTAL HUD FUNDLBALANCE| ¢ M3 |s 13 13 asgieee|s + L] 17088 (s [ -
Wirypoirt
SS-2019-EHS-D4PERMAIT AR

Esind 84, Buiget Sheet, Amendment £2

Page 10l }
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

Lori A. Shibinetic

Commbssloner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 - '
. 603-271-9474  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
. Chqlnlnl;‘I.Sml:ﬂkllo Fax: 603-2714230 TDD Access: 1-800-715-2964 www.dhhi.nh.gov
' rector .
April 28, 2020

His Excellency Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House .. '

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

EQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depariment of Health and ‘Human Semces Division of Economic-and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Waypoint (VCH#177166),
Manchester, NH to continue providing a Rapid Re-Housing Program  serving New Hampshire
Runaway and Homeless Youth, through the Federal Continuum'of Care Program, by exercising
a contracl renewal option by increasing the price limltation by $200,112 from $188, 950 to
~ $389,062 and by extending the completion date from May 31; 2020 to Aprit 30, 2021 effective:
upon Governor and Council approval. The original .contract was approved by Govemor and
. Council on June §, 2019, item #33. 100% Federal Funds.

) Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal ‘Years 2020 and 2021 with
the authority to adjust budgel line items within the price limjtation and enCUmbrances between '
statefi soal years lhrough the Budget Office, if needed and juSllfled

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT-OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
" SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS&HOUSING HOUSING SHELTER PROGRAM

State Increased

Fiscal Sloss! | class e | b, | Suent | pocreasen) |- et
2019 | 102:500731 C‘,’;:g;cs‘jc’“ 8D $15746| . $0 3?5.;45_
2020 | 102-500731 C‘;,’:g;‘:s‘if' 18D | $173,.200 $13.454 |  $186,658
2021 | 102-500731 C‘;,iggcs‘iém TBD | $0| - $186,658 "'186;658 '
o Total | $186,950 $200,112 s;aeidsz
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
8nd tho Honorable Council
Pego20f3

EXPLANATION -

. This request is Sole Source because federal regulations. require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum. of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued. As previously stated, the original -

" contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 5, 2019, ltem #33.

The purpose of this request is to conlinue a Rapid Re-Housing (RRH), Permanent Housing
Program that delivers rental assistance and supportive services to participants.

Approximalely fifty (50) individuals who are between tha ages of 18 and 24 years will be
served from June 1, 2020 lo April 30, 2021 with ten (10) individuals being served at any given
time.

The Conl'ractor engages individuals' referred by coordinated entry stah’ in order to
determine Rapid Re-Housing eligibility. The Contractor makes referrals 10 ensure immediale
basic needs are met. Once enrolled, case management staff work with paricipants to assess

current housing.and service needs as well as barriers to attaining housing. Project staff coordinate
with community resources to connect youth 1o resources that may assist with increasing income,
“such as Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF); job readinéss programs; and Socigl
Security benefits. Outcomes of services provided include youlh ‘moving into @nd retaining
permanenl housing as wall as youth connecting with community and mainstream services to
increase independence and household income, which may result in suslalnlng permanent
. housing.

The Depanman! will momlor contracted services usmg the !o!lowmg performance
measures:

e "Annual complianc_e reviews will bg'perfo}med ‘that include the collection 'of data
relating 1o compliance with adminisirative rules and confractual dgreements.

.o Stat}stical reports will be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all fu}\ded vendors,
including various demographic mformalson and income -and expense reports
mcludmg match dollars.

s The Vendor will be required 1o maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New
Hampshire Homeless Managemenl Informalion System, unless they are required
by law lo use an allernate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management
Information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of -
shelter and housing 'programs funded through this contract.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revrslons to Standard Contract Language. Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2). additional years, contingenl upon salisfactory delivery of services, available runding
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Depanmem is exercnsmg its

" option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available. :

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request Rapid Re- Housmg and
supportive services may nol be avallable lo New Hampshire Runaway and Homeless Youth in
their communilies, which could resull in an increase in demand for services from local welfare
authorities.
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"His Excellency, Govem'or Christopher T. Suhunu
and the Honorable Council
Page 30f 3

Areé served: Statewide’
Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.267/ FAIN# NH0115L1T001800

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not

. be requasted to support this program.:
Respectiully submitt
/7

ri A Shibinette :
Commlssloner

The Department of Health and Humaon Services’ Mission is lo join communities ond families

in providing opportunities for ¢itizens to ochicve health and independence.
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' New Hampshiré Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum ofCare Program_

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care Program

. This, 1% Amendment to the Continuum of Care Program contract (hereinafer refecred to as
‘Amendment #17) for Rapid Re-Housing is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department ‘of Health and Human' Services (hereinakter referred to "as the “State" or
"Department”) and Waypoint, (hereinafter referred to es "the Contractor"). a nonprofit corporation’
with a place of business at464 Chestnut Street, P.O. Box 448, Manchester, NH, 03105.

. WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the ' Contract’) approved by the Governor and Executive
! _ Council on Jung 5, 2019, (ltem #33), the Conlractor agreed to perform certain. services based
- . upon the terms and condmons specified in the Contract and in conSIderat:on of certain sums
‘ . specified; and :

- WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and.Exhibit C-1,
- Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended
** and extended ‘upon written agreement of the pames and approval from the Governor and
_ Executive Council; and -

i WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation,
or modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

: NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
comameq in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as foliows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion'Date. to read:
. April 30, 2021, '

i 2. Form P-37, General Prowsnons Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:;
$389,062°

3. Modity Exhibit B, Methods and Condilions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Rap:d Re-
Housing Program Funding, Subparagraph 1.2, toread.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by funds made avanabie under the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. 100% Federal Funds, Continuum of Care, Rapid Re- Housnng as awarded on
January 14, 2019 and February 6, 2019, by the U.S. Department of Housing
& Urban Deve!opment (HUD), CFDA 14.267, FAIN NHO01 15L17T001800.

1.2.2. Tolal Amount of Continuum of Care:
1.2.2.1. Not to exceed, $389,062

Waypoint ' . Amendment #1 . Contractor lr\ilinls‘ i
'$S5-2019.BHS-04.-PERMA-27-.01-A0) ' Puge 10f 4 ’ Date,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Cate Proaram’
. 1.2.3. Funding allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Prbgramf-
1.2.3.1. Renlal Assistance: $225,766
1.2.3.2. Case Managemenl $5,298
'1.2.3.3. Transportation: $494
1.2.3.2. Supportive Sewlces: " $139,004

1.2.3.3. Administrative Expenses:  $18,500
1.2.3.4. Tolal Allocation Amount:  $389,062

4.” Modify Ex:rmibit B-1 Budget, SFY 2020, 711119 to 5/31/2020, by replacing in its entirety
with Exhibit B-2 Budget Amendment #1, SFY 2020, 7/1/19 to 6/30/2020, which is
-attached hereto and incorporated by referenice herein. .

'5. " Add Exhibit B-3 Budget Amendment #1, SFY 2021, 7/1[20 to 413012021 attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein. .

A!I terms and conditions of the Contract not mconsustenl with this Amendment #1 remain in fuil
force and effect. This amendmen! shall be effective upon the date of Gavernor and Execuuve
Councnl approval,

Waypoint ) Amendment #1 Contractor lnlhals%
§5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-01~A01 " Page2ol4 R Date fj t _Z.},Z-ZG
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7

New Hampshire Dopartment of Health and Human Services
: ' -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as 6f-the date written below,

* .State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

{]az|20

: Dat : i .
. ’ at _ : . . - Director, Divisio_n Eoonomic_&Housing- Stab_ili.ty.
“Waypoint ‘ _
lfhz,/z,o - L ]
Date o : - o Name: bb( ) f\lW!ZM A~

: Tl_U-_e ?MS‘NM‘*' /(ﬁo

. Waypoint . Amandmeni #1
§5-2010-BHS-04-PERMA-27-01-A01 ., Pego Jof 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care Proaram

" The precedmg Amendment, having been rewewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execuhon

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

o . . /A/MZW

‘Date . L ‘Name:
Title: -
St | hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was apbroved bythe Governor and EieCuliqe
' Council of the State of New Hampshlre at the Meeting on:, ... (date of
meeting) ; . ;

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date - o Name..
B Title:
waypolnt " Amendment #1

§5-2019-BHS-04-PERMA-27-01-A01 Page 4 ol 4
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Exiybit 8-2 Sudget
Amendment £1 -

New Hampshire Department e! Hoalth and Human ScMcn
. COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGEY PERIOD
* ContraciorNeme:  Waypoint- s W & C )
Budget.Roquest for: SS.701 8-BH3-0LPERMA-IT-AL] -

Budge! Pertod: WY u:)zo /156307209

W rypaint

532019 BHSO4-PERMA-27-A01

. Exhidit B-1 Budget Amendment £1

Pagelofl

CoC Funds
. - . TOVAL PROGRAM COST BHS SMARE

IActivity Name BUOGET Yo - MONTHLY BUDGET- - YTD . mowTHLY
Rerrat Assistence B 0. 278.00 |.5. . _* L ) wazrem |y - B P
|Supporive Senvicas [ casmools. - - .l qs . esmols . N OB :
IAdmindsreon 3 Be.00 13, .- -l8 ) 480000 {3: S O
25% Requied Mnor [$43.684.00) 3 «8.00400 135 LT g3, A, . T ‘Is S T " 25 D

- TOTALUWUD FUNDS/BALANCE | 3 Dasaron | 5 - s ' 19K5200 {5 3 -

Contracwor inldtaty i; l ;

e
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Exhidil 8- Budgrt

Amendment 5)

Coniractar Nama:

err:votnt.

Nuw-mn;pshln Deparunent of Hea!th and Human Sei;vtes a "
COMPLETE ONI-;-BUDGE:I’ FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Budget Request for: $5-2011-OMS-OLPERMA-27-A0T

. Budget Pertod: SFY 201 773720430/ 3)

CoC Funds = .
TOTAL PROGRAM COST COMTRACTOR SHARE

Activity Namo 4 BUDGET . . YYD MONTHLY BUDGET
Reresl Agtistance 3 10A78.00 | 3 Eavy & o > T I TR I 1T
{Supportive Services [ 0,92.00 =" i) ~ 1|3 ¢ i )3 A |00 |5 .
{Administradon ire e |3 g RN Y D YR R T
25%-Réquired Maichr: (343,884,004, s 4823400114 L Yuls . ceomatols i LTy oy _ . ... |

TOTAL RUD FUNDS/BALANCE] g 728,842.00 | & . $ aeseo s 1s ] 183, 852.00

Waypeint

$5-2019-BHS-D4 PTRMA-27-AD1
Euhidit 8-3 Budget Amendment
Pagelof) ’

o

nisak L&T )
Oate !ﬂ l},{t 0




DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AEBA-A2DATA515015

DocuSign Envelope ID: AB436C88-CECA-4B0B-AT8D-9SEF7E400385

NAY1 718 pn 2:34 DS 33 .‘\\DU

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

Jeffrey A Meyen ;
Comemisshoner ’ 119 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NK 03301
. 603-271.547¢  1-800-852.3345 Ext 9474°
Chrlnin:; L. Santanklo ’ Fox: 603-1714230 TDD Access: 1-800-7)5-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
irecioe
May 13, 2019

- His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu !
" and the Honorable Council '
State House
Concord,; New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depariment of Heallh and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing.
Stability, 10 enter into 8 sole source agreement with Waypoint, 464 Chesinut St, P.O. Box 448,
Manchester, NH 03105 ‘(vendor #177166), to provide' a Rapid Re-Housing Program serving New
Hampshire Runaway and Hometess Youth, through the Federal Continuum of-Care Program, in an
amount not to exceed $188,950, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through May
31, 2020 100% Federal Funds. : .

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2019, and are anticipaled 1o be
available in State Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds i the future’
operaling budgets, wilh authority to adjusl amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budgel Office il needed and justified.

05-95742-42301 0-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, QEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN _SVCS,.
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fisca) Year | Class/Account "Class Title Job Number’ Amount
2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services T8D $15.746

2020 102-500731 Contracts .Ior Program Services T8D 51_73.204

' Total o .| $188,950

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because federal regulauons require the Department to speafy each
vendor's name dunng the annua), federal Continuum of Care Program renewal applicalion process, prior
to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

" reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The applicalion process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date of a grant is based -
on the month in which each-grant’s original federal agreement was issued. This resulls in Continuum of
Care Program gran! start dates, and subsequent renewal approval reques!s occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The attached agreement represents one (1) of thirty (30) total agreements, all of which have

renewal dates dispersed throughou! the calendar year, with vendors who are located throughoul the-slate "
to ensure slalewide delivery.of housing services through New Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.

/
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Has Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 20f 3

The pufpose of this request.is for the provision of a Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing
Program that shall deliver rental assistance, suppodive services and associated administrative services
targeted to serve up to one hundred twenty (120) particnpanls from June 1, 2019 through May 31, 2020,
with ten (10) individua! youth, eighteen (18) to twenty-four (24) years old, bemg served at any gwen time. -

Using the “Housing First" model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Managemem
plans, the Vendor will facilitate paricipanl’s movement into sustained permanent housing while providing
connections ‘with communily and’ mainstream services 1o increase household income and maximize
pamapant s ability lo live more mdependenUy

The need 1or this newly-issued program, with a HUD grant award dote of February 5 2019 is
emphasized by the fact that there was proviously nc statewide: Rapid Re-Housing Program fully
dedicaled to aervmg Runaway and Homeless Youth. This new progrem is also responsivo to the most

- recent national data estimates stating that one (1) in ten (10) youth, age eighteen (18) fo twenty-four (24) -

years old, experience some-form of homelessness in a year.

HUD established the Contmuum of Care concep! to support communities in thelr efforts 1o
address the problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehenswe and strategic
fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main purposes

» A strategic planning process for addressmg homelessnéss in lhe community.

» A process to engage broad-based, community-wide mvolvemeqt in addressing homelessness o
on a year-round basis. :

e An opponumty for communmes to submit an application to the U, S Oepartmem of Housing -
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and suppont sennces I‘or homeless
;] mdnv:duaﬂs and families.

The following performance measureslobjecuves will be used to measure contraci compliance and
vendor performance:

"« Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that mclude the collection of dala relatmg to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

o Statistical repons shall be submitted on 8 semi-annual basis from all funded vendors mctudmg
various demographic information and mcome and expense reparts including match dollars.

e Allvendors funded for rapid re-housing. lransmonal permanent or coordinated eniry housing,

_ or outreachservices will be required to maintain timely and ‘accurate data enlry in the New

Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required by law to

use an allernate means ol data collection. The NH Homeless Management Information

* System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and achvnlnes of shelter and housmg
programs funded through this conlract. - . \

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the Depanment reserves the right to extend this
agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfaclory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, Rapid Re-Housing and
supportive services for New Hampshire Runaway and Homeless Youth may not be available in their
communities, and there may be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's Ioca| welfare
authorities. It may also cause individuals and/or families 1o become homeless.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of.Community Planning and Devetopment, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267, Federal Award Identificalion Number (FAIN) NHO115. '

~
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable COuncnl
Page 3 of 3

- Area served: Siatevnde

In the event that the Feaeral funds become no longer available, General funds will not be
requestedto 'suppont this program

Respectfully submitted.-

o @«,W

Jeffrey A. Meyers
- Commissioner

The Dcporlmcnl of Health and Humaon Services” Mission is 1o join communities and Immlln
in prouiding opportunities for citizens do achieve heolth ond independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-JT(vcnlon Sr3/1s)

Nolicg: This ogreement ond sl of its Bitachmens shall become public upon submission to Governor and -
Exccutive Council (or epproval: Any information thal is privete, confidential or propriciary musi,
be cleorly identificd 10 the egency ond agrecd 10 in writing prior to signing the contreci.

AGREEMENT
The Stote of New Hampshire and the Contracior hereby mulually agree as (ollows:
. CENERAL PROVISIONS
1.__IDENTIFICATION, : . -
1.} Stote' Agency Name 1.2 Staic Agency Address
NH Depenment of Heolth and Humen Services N 129 Plcasant Streel
. Concord, NH 033013857
1.3 Contracior Name ) 1.4 Coniracior Address
‘Waypoint : 464 Chestnut Si.
‘ . P.O. Box 448
Manchester, NH 03105 ;
1.S Comructor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Dale t.8 Price Limitation
Number - . d
603-518-9000 05-95-42-423010-7927-102- 0573172020 $188950
500731 ' ’ s
1.9 Controcling Oficer for State Agency 1.10 Stare Agency Telephone Number
Nathan D. Whilc, Dircctor : 603-271-9611
1.114 Contractor Signature . 1:12 Nme end Title of Comracior Signatory
Qs Awaer 5 T Llhin Povidut7 Lo
103 -Acknow chgcmcm Sme of Ntuhnnm wCounty of H-ﬂ)borka .

On May 10t 2014, before the undersigned ofTicer, personally oppeased the person ldcnhhcd in block |. l2 or snlul’ncton!y
proven lo%c the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that she cxceuled this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12. .
(.13.1 Signsiure of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
MM_Q,Q Walh.,  NOOLE JWALKER, katos.of o Pacto ,
Stato of New Hampshio .
(Seant) Ay Comminaion Explres July 1§, 2023

1,13.2 Name and Title of Notery or Jusiice of the Peace

}‘hC_Q\Q Joun \):5‘-\“‘ e A(Smm. Yrotve B5odnat

1.4 Smc Ageacy Signature .13 Nnmc ond Téle of Swic Agency Signslory

\
|\

~on: | &1efosq

- 1 . #
1.18 Approvel by the Govlrnor and Exccutive Council (if epplicable)

By: . . On:

Page | of 4
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1. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRA CTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The Siatc of New Hampshire, octing
through the ogency ideniificd in block 1.1 (“Swic"), cngages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Controctor”) to perform,
and the Contracior shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more perticularly described in the ottoched
. EXHIBIT A which is incorporsied herein by reflerence
(“Services"). ' .

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithsiending eny provision of this Agreement 10 the
contrury, and subject to the opproval of the Goveraor ond
Exceutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
spplicable, this Agreement, end oll dbligations of the panies
hereunder, shell become cffective on the date the Governor
end Exccutive Council opprove this Agreement as indicated in
“block 1.18; unless no such opproval is required, in which casc
the Agreement shall become cffective on the datc the
Apreemen is signed by the Siate Agency os shown in block
1.14 (“EfMective Dote™). '
3.2 I the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
~ EMective Datc, all Services peeformed by the Conuracior prior
10 the CfTective Osie shol! be'perlormed at the sole risk of the
Contracior, ond in the cveny that this Agreement does not
beeome effective, the State sholl have no liobility 10 the
Conirocior, including withoul timilation, ony obligation to pay
the Contractor for sy eésts incurred or Services performed.
Coniractor musi complete all Secvices by the Completion Daie
specificd in block 1.7. .

4. CONDITIONALNATURE OF ACREEMENT.
Notwithstanding eny provision of this Agreement 1o the
contrary, o}l obligations of the Stuie hereunder, including,
withoul limilstion, the continuance of payments hereunder, ore
contingent upan the ovailability and continucd appropriolion
of funds, ond in no event shall the State be lisble for any
payments hereunder in excess of such ovailable appropristed”
funds. In the cvent of o reduction or tcrminotion of .
opproptisied funds, the Staic sholl have the right 1o withhold
paymeal until such funds become avoilable; il cver, ond shall

- have the right to teaminate this Agreement immedidtely upon
giving the Contracior notice of such tormination, The State
shall not be required 10-iransfer funds from ony other account
10 the Account identificd in block 1.6 in the event funds in tha
Account ore reduced or unovailable. © '

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. ) -

5.1 The coniract price, method of payment, and terms of
paymeni orc identificd end'morc panicularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporaied herein by reference.

. 5.2 The payment by the Ste of the comract price sholl be the
only ond the complete reimbursement Lo the Canractor for ol
cxpenses, of whalever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only end the complcre
compensation 1o the Contractor for Ihe Services. The State
shull hove no liability 10 the Contrucior uther thaon (he contract
price.

Pégc? of4

$.3 The Stoic rescrves the right to ofTsct from any smounts
otherwise paysbic (o the Conlractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitied by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law,

3.4 Nonwithistonding any provision in this Agreement 1o the
contrary, and notwithsianding unexpecied circumstonces, in
no eveat sholl the 1010 of ol poyments autharized, or actually
mode hercunder, excerd the Price Limilotion st fonth in block
1.8

6. COMPLIANCE 8Y CONTRACTOR WiTH LAWS
AND RECULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. -

" 6.1 In connection with the peeformance of the Services, the

Contractor shall comply with all stsiutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of (ederal, state, county or. municipsl authoritics
which impose eny obligation or duly upon the Conteacior,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and cquol apporiunity
Jaws. This may includc the requirement 1o utilize auxiliory
0ids ond 3ervices to cnsure that persons with communication
disabilitics, including vision, heering ond speech, cen
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Coniracior. In oddition, the Contractor
shall comply with oll spplicable copyright lows.

6.2 During the term of this Agreemént, the:Contractor shall
no1 discriminate egeinst emplayees or applicants for
employment becouse of race, color, religion, creed, oge, sex,
handicep, scxual oricntalian, of notionol origin ond will icke
allirmative ection to prevent such discriminotion.

6.3 [T ihis Agreement 43 funded in any pont by monics of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with ail the
provisions of Exccutive Qrder No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opponunity™), as supplemented by ihe
regulations of the United States Depaaiment of Lobor (41
C.F.R. Port 60), ond with gny rules, regulations and guidelines
05 the State of New Hampshire or the Uniled Siaies issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor funthier agrees to
permit the Siate or United States occess 1o any of the.
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
oscertaining compliance with il rules, cegulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreemenl..

7. PERSONNEL. - o

7.1 The Contracior shall bl its own cxpense provide of
peesonnel accessary Lo perform the Seevices. The Controcior
wacrants that al) personncl engaged in the Seevices shall be
qualificd 1o perform the Services, end shall be properly
licensed ond othenvise outhorized to do 30 under oll opplicoble
(awvs. . 2 §

7.2 Unless otherwise suthorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, ond for o period of six {6) months ofier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contrecior shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor of other person, ficm-or
corporation with whom it is engoged in o combined cfTort 10
pecform the Services 10 hire, any person who is o Stole
employze or ofTicisl, who is materislly involved inthe

procurcment, pdminisieation or performance of this

. -~
Contractor Initials ?ﬁh
i Dare
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Agreement. This provulon shall survive termination of this
Agreement,

7.3 The Conirscting OfMicer specificd in block 1.9, or his or
her successar, sholl be the Swie's representative, In the event
of any disputc concerning the intcrpreietion of this Agreement,
the Contracting OMicer's decision shall be final for the Stale,

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.) Any onc or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Coniractor sholl constitule an event of deflault hereunder
(“Evem of Default"):

8.1.1 failure 1o perform the Services uusrmonly or 60
schcdutc

8.1.2 failure to submit any rcpon n:quur:d hercunder; end/or
8.1.3 feilure 10 perform any others covensnl, term Of condmon
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Dcfauli, the State |,
may toke any one, or more, or oll, of the followmg actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor o wrinien notice specifying the Event
of Ocloult and requiring it 10 be remedicd within, inthe
absence of o greater or lesser specificotion of time, thiny (30)
doys from the doteof the notice; and il the Cvent of Defoult is
nol limely remedied, Lerminale this Agreement, effective two
(2) days ofter giving the Contractor notice of terminotion;
8.2.2 give the Cantractor 8 writitn notice specifying the Event
. of Defoult and suspending oll peyments (0 be made uader this
Agreement end ordering thal the penion of the contract price
which would otherwise eeerue to the Commetor during the
periad from the date of such notice until such time es the Siote
desermines that the Controctor hos cured the Event of Defauht
shall never be paid to the Coniractor; .

8.2.1 se1 ofT against any other abligations the State may owe 1o
the Coatrnctor sny damages the State sulTers by reason of any
Evem of Defloult; and/or _

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached ond pursuc any of its
remedics ot low or in cquity, or both. |

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION:

9.1 As used in this Agreemen, the word "dal.a" shall mean o)

information and things developed or obwined during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by rcason of, 1his
Agreement, including, but not limited 10, ell studics, reports,
fles, formulac, surveys, mops, chons, sound recordings, video
recardings, picioriol reproduciions, drowings, cnolyscs,
grephic represeniations, computer progmms, computer
printows, noics, Icucrs, memoranda, popers, and documents,
al} whether finished or unfinished, .

9.2 All dato and any propeny which has been received from
the Sio1¢ or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propery of the Suaic, and
shall be retiumnced 10 the Stoic upon demend or upon
teeminotion of this Agreement for eny reason,

9.3 Confidentiality of dats sholl be govemed by N.H. RSA
chopier 91-A or orher exisiing 1aw., Disclosyre of dats
requires prior writlen approval of the Siste.

Pege 3 of 4

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an carly icrmination of
this Agreement for any tcason other than the completion of the
Services, the Conirackor shall defiver 1o the Contracling
OfTicer, not Ister than Nflcen (15) days aNer the deic of
rmination, o repont (“Teemination Report™') describing in
detail all Services pesformed, and the coniract price carned, to
ond including the daie of termination. The form, subject

- matter, content, and numbder of capies of the Termination

Repon shell be identical to thost of any Final Repon
described in the entached EXHIDIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the peclormence of this Agreement the Contracior is in oll
respects an independent contracior, and is ncither 6n agent nor *
on employec of the Stute. Neither the Contractor nor any of s
ofTicers, employccs, agents or membess shall have sutherity 1o
bind the Swie or receive any benelits, workers' compensation
or othtr emoluments provided by the Siate to its employees.

.12, ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Controgior shall nol assign, or othenwise trgnsfer any
intecest inthis-Agreement without the prior wrinen notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracicd by the Contractor without the prior wrilicn
notice and consent of the Stote.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Controcior shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmlcss the Stane, it officers and
employces, [rom and against any end all losscs sullercd by the
Siatc, its ofTicers ond employees, ond eny ond &)l cloims,
lisbilities or penolties nsserted ogoinst the Siote, its officers
end employeces, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed 1o erise oul of).the sets or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithsiending the foregoing, nothmg herein
conigined shall be ‘deemed 10 constitute o waiver of the
sovercign immunity of the State, which'immunity is hereby
reserved to the Staie. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the 1crminotion of this Agreement,

Id. INSURANCE

141 The Coatructor shull, ut its solt expense, nblum ond

maintain in fofce, ond shall require eny subtoniceclor of
n.mgncc to obtain and meintaia in (orce, the following
msumncc

14.1.1 compreheasive gcn:ral Iwbcluy insurance apoinst oll
cloims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in smouats .
of nol less thon $1,000,000p¢r occurrence and $2,000,000
spgregeic ; and

14.1.2 special cousc of loss coverage form covering ol
property subject Lo subparagraph 9.2 hercin, in en amount not
less than 80% of the wholc replacement velue of the propeny.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14,1 hercin sholl.
be on policy forms ond endorsements approved for use in the
Statc of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depanment of
Insurance, ond issucd by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshirc,

Contractor Initials e”‘“
Date
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14.3 The Contractor shall fumnish to the Contrecting Officer
idenified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, o centificate(s)
of insurance flor oll insuronce required under this Agreement.
Coniractor shalt elso (urnish to the-Contracting QlMicer .
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenificate(s) of
insurance for oll renewal(s) of insuronce required under this
Agreement no {oter than thiny ()0) days peior o the expirnlion
date of coch of the insurence policies. The cenilicate(s) of
insuronce and eny renewsls thereof shall be attoched and erc
incorporoied herein by reference. Each cenificatc(s) of
insuronce shall conlain o clsuse requiring the insurer 10

" provide the Contracting OMicer identified in block 1.9, or his ‘

or her successor, no less than thinty (30) days prior writien
notice of cancellation or modificotion of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 Oy signing this agreement, the Contractor ogrees,
cenifics and warrants that the Contractor is in complionce with
or exempt from, the requirements of NJH. RSA chepter 281 A
(" Workers® Compensation").

15.2 To the exient the Conlrocior is subject 1o the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapier 281-A, Conlracior shall

* meiniain, ond require ony subcontractor OF assignee to sccure
- ond msintsin, poyment of Workers' Compensotion in
conncction with activitics which the person proposcs Lo
undertake pursuani to this Agrecment. Contracior shall
fumish the Conteocting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Warkers' Compensation in the
monnce descrided in N.H. RSA chopier 281-A ond ony
opplicable renewnl(s) thereof, which shall be attached and orc
incorpomicd herein by reference, The Staic sholl notbe |
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensatinn
premiums or for sny other claim or benefit for Coniracior, o
ony subcontractor or emplayce of Contractor, which might
srisc under appliceble Suate of New Hampshire Workers'

© Compensotion laws in conacction with 1he performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Siic o,
enforce any provisions heecol eNer ony Event of Delauly shall
be deemed 8 waiver of its rights with regord 1o that Event of
Ocloul, or any subscquent Event of Defaull, No express
failure to enforce ony Event of Defoult shall-be deemed o
waiver of the right of the State to enforce cach and ol of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Coniroctor..

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hercto 1o the other pany’
shell be deemed Jo have been duly delivered or givcn ol the
time of meiling by cenificd moil, posioge prepaid, in 8 Uniled
Stntes Post Office addressed 1o the pnmcs ol the oddresscs
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, hercin:

18. AMENDMENT. This Agrecement may be omended,
waived of d:schugcd only by on instrument in writing signed
by the partics heeeto and only fter opproval of such *
pmendment, woiver or discharge by the Qovemor and
Exccutive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such appraval is required under the urcumstnnces pursusat to
Swnie low, rule ar policy.

19. CONSTR UCTIOH OF ACREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement sholl be construed in pecordonce with the
laws of the State of New Hompshire, ond-is binding upon and
inures to the benelit of the parties and their respeciive
successors end assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the partics to cxpress their mutuol
intent, and no rule of consiruction sholl be applicd ugumsl or
in fovor of ony pany.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The partics hereto do not intend to
benelit any third panics and this Agrecement 3hall not be
consirucd 10 confer any such benclu,

1. HEADINGS. The hcadings throughoul the Agreemeat
are for reference purposcs only, and the words coneined
thercin shall in no way be held 10 explain, modify, omplify or
&id in the imerprelation, consiruciion or meaning of the

_pravisions of this Agrecement,

12. SPECIAL PROVISIONS: Additiona) provisions sct
forth in the dtisched EXHIBIT C ere incorporated hercin by
reference.

13. SEVERABILITY. Inthe evenl any of the provisions of
1his Agreement ere held by o <oun ol’compucm ;umducuon o
be contrary 10 oay state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreemenl will remain in {ull force and
cfTect.

L2 ENTIRE ACREEMENT. This Agreement, which moy

be excculed in & number of counterpans, cach of which shall
bc deemed an oniginel, constitutes the catire Agrecement and
undersiending between the panties, and supersedes-oll prior
Agreemeals ond undersiandings relating herelo.

Coniractor Initials KA
Date_S {10 /1A
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

Rapid Re-Housing Program
1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

KR

12.

14. .

1.5.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.3

The Contractor shall submit a deta:led description of the language assistance services lhey will
provuded to persons with limiled Engl-sh proficiency to ensure meaninglul access to their
programs and/or servicas within ten (10) days of the coniract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Comraclor agrees (hal, to the extent fulure Ioguslalwe aclion by the New Hampshlre General
Céurt or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, Ihrough the Bureau' of Housing Supports, has the right to modify -service priorities and

~ expendilure requirements under this Agreement so as 1o achieve compliance therewith.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement 1o the. -contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingenll upan receipt of federal funds under the Conlinuum of Care (CoC) Granl. The State,

as lhe Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipient-of the CoC

funding, has apphed for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due dcltgence in the
application process. However, the State makes no representation thal it will receive the funds. In
no event shall the State be liable far costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the

* Contractor prior to the Stale's receip! of federal-funds applied for in the CoC Granl.

For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Conlractor as a

. subrecipienl, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contracl to the conlrary no services shall continue
after June 30, 2018, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services
provided after June 30, 2019, unless and unlil an appropriation for these services has been
received from the stale legislature and funds encumbered ror the SFY 2020-2021 biennium.

Notwlzhstandung the conﬁdennahty procedures eslablished under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US

‘ Depariment of Housing and Urban Developmen! (HUD) the HUD Office of the Inspector

General and lhe Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representahves musl have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records
of .the Conlraclor that are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, ‘examinalions,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are nol limiled to the requrred retention period,
but last as long as the records are relained. :

The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and slate ﬁnanc:al and conﬁdentlamy laws,
and agrees to comply with the program nasalives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detalled in the 2017 Notice of Fundmg Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

The Contractor shall prowde services according 1o HUD reguratuons oultined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR'Pan 578: _CoC Program and other written, appropriale HUD policies/directives.

All programs shall be licensed to provide cluent level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Managemant Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data enlry, a:curacy of dala entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit | for Privacy
requirements.

Waypcint RAH Yo EnMA : Contracior las _h___
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1.10. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic rewew of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.11. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which Is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housnng and
maximum seli-sufficiency.

§gggg of Serylces
2.1. The Contractor shall nmpiemen! a Coordinaled Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the

CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

= .- 22. The Contractor shall provide a rapid re-housing program that delivers remal ass-stance and
. supportive services 10 a largeted population of ten (10) individua! youth, ages ergh\een (18) to
twenry -four (24) years old, and which includes but is not limited to: .

2.21. Utuhzahon of the “Housing First” model, ensuring barriers 10 entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project panticipation for.
the most severe reasons, once avanlable oplions have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing. - . ;

2.2.2.: The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan-with the participanl, at

intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive

- Services Is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the parhcnpanl in’ oblalmng the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

23. The Contractqr shall establish and maintain standard operaling procedures to ensure CoC

program funds- are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain

"~ sufficient records 1o enable HUD and BHS to determine Contraclor requuement compliance,
mdudmg

. Continuum_of Care .Regords: The Contractor shall maintain the followmg documentation
related to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of . Hog_]g ess_Status. The Convaclar shall mamtaln acceplable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b):

2.3.1.2. Records of al Risk of Homelessness Stalﬁ;: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness” stalus of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2313, ! nable Belief of tmminent Threal of Harm, The Contractor shall maintain
documeniation of each program participan! who moved-to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domeslic violence, daling violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined -
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Conlractor shall relain documenlauon that includes byl is
nol limited to:

23131 The ongmal incidence of domestic wo|ence datmg violence, sexual assaull, or
sialking, only if. the original violence is not_already documented in the program
padicipant’'s case file. This may be written observation of the housing-or service
provider; a letter or other documentation from 8 victim service provider, social worker, -
legal assistance provider,. pasioral counselor, mental heallh; provider, or other
professional from whom the viclim has sought assistance; medical or dental records;
court records or law enforcement records, or wrilten cerlification by the program

. participant to whom the violence occurred or by the-head of household.
Waypoint RRH : ' €A . Contracker Inklals g

§5.2019 BHS 04 PERMA-27 Page2ol§ ’ Osts izlq['gﬂ



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AEBA-A2DA7A515015

DocuSign Envelope 10: AB436CB6-CECA-4BOB-ATBD-9SEF TE400385°

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

23132 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of futther domestic violence, dating
violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-parnty,
such as 3 friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be
written observalion by tha housing or service provider; a letter or other documentalion
from a viclim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, menltal health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has
sought assistance; currént restraining order; recent court order of other court records;
law enforcement report or records; communicalion records from the perpatrator of the
violence or famity members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemalls, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification .
by the program participant to whom the violance occurred or the head of household

2.3.1.4, ggg rds “of Annual Income. For each program padicipanl who receives housing
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program paﬂmpanl the
Contractor must keep the following documentatian of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1.  Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statemenl, unemploymenl compensation
statemen!, -public’ benefits stalement, bank slatement) for the assels held by the’
program participant and income received befare the date of.the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. Yo the exten! that source documents are unoblainable, a written statement by 8
* relevant.third parly (e.g., employet, government benefits administralor) or the writien -
centification by the Conlractor's intake staff of the oral verificalion by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

23.144. . To the extent thal source documenls and third-parly verification are unobtainable, the
wiritlen certification by the program participant of the amount of Income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

-2.3.1.5. Program Padicipant Records, In addilion to evidence of homelessness stalus or al-risk-of-
hamelessness stalus, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
parli¢ipant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance pravided to that program padicipant, including evidence
thal the Contraclor has conducted an annual assessment of services .for those
program participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted
the service package accordingly, and including case managemenl services as
provided in 24 CFR 578.37(a)(1){ii)(F). and

2.3.1.5.2. Wnere applicable, compliance wnlh the {ermination of assustance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.16. t&pj_ﬂ_g_m The Contractor must rétain documentation of comp!uanoe with the -
housmg standards in 24 CFR 578 75(b), including inspection repons.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided, The Comraclor must document the types of supporlive services
provided under the Conlractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
,Comfador must keep documentation that these records were reviewed al leas! annually

and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.
_2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with;

'2.4.1. The Orqanizalional conﬂxcl-of interest requuemenls in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

Waeypolnl RAH .  emma Contracior Inklats
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242,
24.3.

The Contioyum of Care Board conflict-ol-interes! requirements in 24 CFR 578, 95(b).
The Other Confligts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal cbnmct- finterest
policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records suppomng any
exceplions 10 the personal conflict-ol-interest prohibitions.

26. The Cantractor shall comply and retain documentalion of compliance with:

2.6.9.

26.2.°

26.3.

2.6.4.
265

26.6.

M{gﬁg_ﬁaﬁmﬂm requirements in accordance wilh 24 CFR 578.75(g).
“'rn; Failn-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

Affimnalively Fudhering Fair Housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and -

other materials used 10 inform ehguble persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).’

Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR $78.99, as applicable.

Other Records Specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other recards as specified by

RUD,

TheContractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Reguirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84,

2.7, ggnr,dentlglm In addition lo meeting the specific confidentiality and security - requ;remenls for
"‘MMIS dala (76 FR 76917), the Conlracto: shall develop and umplemenl written procedures 1o
ensure:’

"2.71,

2.7.2

2.7.3.

Al records conlaining prolecled identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or recelves Continuum of Care assistance shall-be kept secure and confidential;

The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except wilh writen aulhorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the p:cqect and

The address or Iocatlon of any housing of a program participant will not be made pubdlic,
except as provided under a preexisling privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipien! and
consistent with State and tocal laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality,

2.8. Period of Record Retenlion. The Contraclor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
icrofilming, pholocopying, or other similar melhods, pedaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for the greater of five (S) years following the Coniract Completion Date and receip) of
final payment by the Contractor or the period specified. below:

281

2.8.2.

Documentation of each program participant's qualilication as 8 family or individual at risk of
homelessness or as a ‘homeless family or individual and other program participant records
must be retained for five (5) years afier the expenditure of all funds from the grant under
which the program participanl was served; and

Where Continuum of Care funds are used for the acquisilion, new construclion, of
rehadilitation of a project site, records must be retained until fiieen (15) years after the date
thal the projec! site is first occupied, or used, by program participants.

3. Program Re ing R reme

3.9. The Contractor shall submil the following reports:

Waypaini I}K
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3.1.1. Aopual Pedormance Repor (APR). Within thity (30) days afer the ContractGrant
Completion Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results’
of the Project Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in
the manner proposed in the applicalion submitied to KUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of
Funding Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State,
and submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exnibit A; and  ~ . -

3.1.2. Other Repors 8s requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.
4. Co‘ngract Admlinlstration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropristelevals of slal‘l 1o attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in date security and confidentiality, according 10 state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need 10 attend such meetings five
(5) working days.in advance of each meeting. .

4.2. The Conlractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

6. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the HUD New Project .
* Application, federal fiscal year 2018, #SF-424, dated September 11, 2018; and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all apphcable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of
Care Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Conlractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Pedormance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A,

" 52. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may obsetve pedormance actMlnes and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Dallvarables

6.1. The Con\réctor shall ;‘mplemenl a Coordinaled Entry Syslem, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibil A,
in accardance with the CoC Program inlerim rute, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Conlractor shall prowde a rapid re-housing program as outlined in Section 2.2. Exhibit A and
other wrmen HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Prqecl outcomes shall include, bul are nol limited to:
6.21.1 Youth moving into and :etammg permanent housing; and

6.2.1.2 Youth connections with community and mainstream services lo increase mdependence
and household income lo sustain parmanent housing.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporing as dela:led in Secuon 3. Program
Reponling Requirements, Exhibit A,

Waypelnl RRH ENM A Coavactor Intlas &E
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: ND CONDITIONS ECEDENT TO PAYMENT
1. Ragld Re-Housing Program Funding ’

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of Ihe services o be performed under this Agreement pursuant lo Exhidit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

_ 1.2, This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federa! funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFOA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: © =~ 0%
1.2.2” Federal Funds: - 100%
123, CFOA#: 14.267
- 1.2.4. Grant Number: © NHO115L1T001800 '
125 Federal Agency: U.S. Departmenl of Housing 8.Urban Develapment (HUD)
“1.26. Prog}am Title: Confinuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;
1.2.7.1. notto exceed $188,950
1.2.8. Funds allocalion under this agreement for Cantinuum of Care. Program

. 1.281. Rental Assistance: $110,568
1.2.82. Case Management: $63,576
1283, Tronspodation:  $5926
1.2.8.4. Administrative Expenses: __$8.6880 '_
1.2.85. Total program amounl: ,  $188.950

1.3. The Contractor agreés 10 provide Lhe services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in comp'liahce with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Conlractor's
currént and/or future funding. .

2. Financial Rggons
2.1. As pan of the performance of the Project Activities, Ihe Contractor covenants and agrees 10
submit the’ following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report. The Audited Financial Repon $hall be prepared in"accordance
* with 2 CFR part 200.

© 2.1.2. One(1) copy of the audiled financial report within th-rty (30) days of the complelion of seid
report to the Stale at the following address: ‘

NH DHHS -
' Bureau of Housing Supports

129 Pleasan Street

Concord, NH 03301

* -
Waypoint RRM ERN D Conlrecior Intlala Eﬂ
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22,

23

Contormance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,

. requirements, and principles speqiﬂed in 2 CFR pan 200.

If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines sel forth by
the Comiptroller General of the United States in “Standaids for Audit of Governmental
Organuzallons Program Activities, and Functions,” within ninety (80) 0ays ‘atier ContracVGrant
comp!euon date.

3. ProlectC nont Schedule: Review by the State

3.1.

3.2

3.3.

Project Costs: As used in Lhis Agreement, the term’ "Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor In the perdormance of the Project Activities, as -
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well'as allowable cos! standards set forth in 2 CFR pan 200 as revised from time to
time and wilh the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the Slate. Nonprofit
subcontraclors shall meet the fequirements of 2 CFR pan 200.

Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for ehgtble costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 1hraugh :
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanenl
housing; transilional housing; supportive services only, HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless

‘prevention. Administrative cosls are eligibte for al) components. All ‘componenis are subject to

the reslrictions on combmmg tunds for centain eligible activities in a single pro;ect found in 24
CFR 578.87(c). :

Match funds;

3.3.1, The Contractor shall provide sufﬁcueni matching !unds as requ:red by HUD regulations

and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements gre to be documenled with each paymem request.

*3.3.3. "The Contracior must malch all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than

34

twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash malch
must be used for the cost of activities (hat are eligible under subpant D of 24 CFR 578.
. The-Contractor shal:

3.3.3.1.  Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made o satisfy the match
- requirement in 24 CFR 5§78.73; i

3.3.3.2. Ensuré records indicate the granl and fscai year for which each matchmg
: conldbution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived: and

" 33.34. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
’ supportéd by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel cosls. %

Paxmggl of Project Cosls:

3.4.1. The State agrees lo provide paymenl ona cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible

expendilures incurred in the fumllment of this Agreement, subject to Ihe avaxlabdnty of
sufficient funds.

weypoht RRH Exith B Convacios Indishy _?ﬁf
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342

343

344,

345

The Contractor shall only be reimbursed (or those costs desgnated as eliginle and
gllowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Etigibilty, Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from Ine State prior (0 o:lhng for any other expenses.

Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved lme item nol to exceed an
* amouni as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

Payment of Project Cos!s shall be made through the utnhzahon of funds as ‘provided
through the U.S: Department of Housing ‘and Urban Development Titte XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Ac1), Subtitte A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time penod not to exceed as specified in Seclion.1.2.-Exhibit B.

Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. Al reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final renmbursement
request for this Conlract, shali be submitted by the tenih (10th) day.of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and.any other documentation required. as desugnaled by ihe State, which shall be
compleled and signed by the Contractor.

3452 Inliey of hard copies submitted to the address listed ln Section 2.1.2, Exhibit B,,
all invoices may be assigned an electromc signatuse and emailed to:

invoi nh.qov

3.4.53. The Contractor shall keep records of their activilies related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any.additional
financial information i requested by the S!aie to verify expenses ’

35. Review of lhe State Disallowance of Costs: - .
3.5.1. Al any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of lhe Annual

35.2

3.5.3.

354,

Wiypoint RRH

Performance Repori, Termination Report or Audited Fmanc:al Report, the "State may
review all Project Cosls incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to dale.

Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined 10 be in excess of aclual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice spec:fymg the disallowed expendilures, inform the Contractor of any such. .
dnsailowance

If the Siate disallows cosls for which-payment has nol yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounls awarded to the Contraclor pursuant to this Agreement are
subgeot to recapture

-Notmlhstandnng anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole o in part, in the evenl of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and B, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have nol been salisfaclordy compleled in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreemenl.

] . Convatior il %
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4. Use of Gfgm Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhidits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made A
by written agreemnent of both parties and may be made through the Budge! Office without
obtaining approval of the Govemor and Exacutive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expegse Eligibllity

5.1. Based on the conunued receiptavailabiity of federal funds, the Coniractor shal! ulilize
Continuum of Care progfam funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUO Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Qperaling Expenses:.
5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:
5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing; )
5.2.1.2.  Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments 10 reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
. (provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expecled replacemem cosl);

$.2.1.4. -Building secunty for a slructure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area Is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5.  Ulilities, including electricity, gas and water; and
§.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.
5.2.2. Ineligible cosls include: ’
. 5221 Renlal assistance and operating costs in the same project;
5.2.22 Operaling costs of emergency shelier and supportive service- only facilities; and

5.2.23. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs ol maintaining and repamng
the housing are included in the lease.

S.3. Supportive Services . -
5.3.1. Ehglbla supportive services cosls musl comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578. 53,
: - and are available to individuals actively parlicipating in the permanent housing program,

532 Elignble costs shall include:

8.3.20. "Annual assessment of Service Needs The costs of assessment required by
578. 53(a) (2).
5.3.2.2. Assislance with moving costs. Reasonable one-lime moving cosls are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;
5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinaling, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
pariicipant(s) are eligidle costs;

Waypoint RARH . Edbad Comacter Inzlsy ?jfi
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53.24.

5.3.2.5.

5.3.2.6.

53.27.
5.3.2.8."

5329,

.5.3.2.10..
. never have been learned or have been los! during course of physical or mental

53.2.11.

53.2.12.

53.213.

53.2.14,

53.2.15.

Waypcinl RRH
£5-2010-DHS Q4-PERMA-27

Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated deve!opmental
aclivities are eligible;

Education Services. The costs of lmprowng xnowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operaung
employment assistance and job training progrars are eligible, “including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on- lhe-;ob instruction, services
that-assist individuals in securing employment, scquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing eaming potential. The cost of providing reasonable snpends to
program participants in employment as:ustanoe and job traumng pfog:ams is also
an eligible cost;

Food. The cost of prowdmg meals or grocenes 10 program participants is eligible;

Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting efigible program
paricipants to locate, oblain, and relam suitable housing are eligible; ‘ .

Legal services. Eligible cosis are the lees charged by licensed attarneys and by
person(s) undér the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless rnd:wdual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing’ -

Life Skils training. The costs of teaching critical life managemenl skills that may

illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary 1o assist the program participant to function
independently’in the community. Componem tife skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household managemenl, conflict

: managemenl -shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, lha use of

public transportalion, and parent lralnmg, .

Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient trealment of mental
health condilions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisls interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and managemenl of medications; and combinations of therapeulic
approaches to address.mulliple problems;

Outpatient health services. Efigible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medxca! conditions when provided by licensed medlcal professionals;

Outreach Services. The cosls of aclmhgs to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediale support and inlervention, 8s well as idenlifying potential
program paticipanls, are ehglble

Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligibte. Inpatien! detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15),

Exia B ' ‘ . Convacior Inltlats
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5.3.2.16. Wtility Deposits. This form of assislance consists of paying for ulility deposils.
Utility depos:ls must be one-ume paid to ulility companies,

5.3.2.17. Direct prows:on of services. I1 the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1)~ (16)
of this section’is bemg directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, eligible
costs for those services are descrived in 24 CFR 578(e) (17).

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cas! not described as elngnble costs under this section is'not
an aligible cost of providing supportive sernvicas using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professiona!l licensure or cedifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populahons All eligible costs are eligible lo the same extent for p:ogram .
paricipants who are unaccompanied homeless y0ulh persons living with
HIV/AIDS: and victims of domestic violence, datrng wo!ence. sexual assaull, or
stalking. ;

54BsnmLA§mﬁm

54.1.
5.4.2

543

" 544

S54.5.

54.6.

5.4.7.

548,

Waypoint RAR

Grant.funds may be used for rental assmtance for homeless mdmduals and families.

Rental assistance.canno! be provided to a program- participant who i is already receiving
rental assistance; or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or opera!mg
assistance through other federal, Stale, or local sources.

Renlal assistance mus! be administered in acoordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as sel forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be: -

5.4.31, Shorterm, upto3 mon!hs of renl
54.3.2. Medium term for 3-24 months or
54.33. " Long- lerm for longer than 24 months.

Grant funds may e used for secun:y deposns in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
“rent,

An advance payment of the las! month’s rem may be provided to the Iandlord in addition
to the security deposit and paymen of first month's rent. - oo

Rental assistance will only be provided for a unil if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to renls being charged for comparabte unassisted units,

taking into account the location, size, type, qualily, amenities, racmues and management - -,

‘and maintenance o! each unil.

The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount nol o exceed one month's rent 10 pay

for any damage 10 housmg due to the aclion of a program participanl. For Leasing funds
only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid lo the landlord from security

deposits. . .

Housing must be in compliance with all Stale and local houssng codes, licensing

requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any olher
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housmg is focated fegardmg the condition of

the slructure and operahon of the housing or services.

'gl»
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Projecl-based, or Sponsor-based redtal assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1, " Tenant.based rental assistance is renlal assistance in -which program participants
choose housing of an appropnate s»ze in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordinalion of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
paricipation, or in a specific structure for the firsl year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assislance provided under the Rapid Re-Housmg program component must be .
tenant based rental assislance.

54.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between_\he
' recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nanprofit
organization, or a community mental. health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program pamcspanls must reside in housing owned of

leaséd by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is p:owded lhrough a contract with the owner of
an exisling struclure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program pammpanls Program pamcupams will not retain rental 3551s|anoe if they
move,

5494, For pro;ect -based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based. rental assmlance program
anacupanls musl enter.into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause, The leases must be automatically renewable upon
- expiration for terms that are 8 minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by eilher party. .

55.1. Ehguble administrative cosls include:

5.5.1.1. The Conlraclor may use funding awarded under this par, for the payment of
’ project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Conlinuum
of Care aciivities. This does not include staff and overhead cosls directly related
lo carrying out activilies eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because

those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

55.1.2. General management, oversighl, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, butl
.are not lumxted 10, necessary expendnlures for the lollowmg .

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages and relaled cosls of the staff of the coniraclor's, or other slaﬂ
engage in program administration.

. 551.2.1.1.  In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related cosls allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administralion assignments, or the pro rala share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Coniraclor may only use one of these
‘methods for each fiscal year granl. Program administration assignments
include the following:

" -
Waypold RRH ’ Exh B . - Y Conupciey tndiah g'!
£5.2010-BHS DLPERMALT : Poga 7010 Oate ﬁ[ ts [lﬁ '



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AE6A-A2DATA515015

DocuSign Envetope ID; AB436C88-CECA-4B0B-A78D-95EF7E400385

New Hampshire Depanment of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care Progmm

Exhlbl! B

55.1.21.1.1.
5:5.1.2.1.1.2.
§.6.1.2.1.1.3.
s..s.}.§,1.1.4.
5512018,

551.2.1.16.
55.1.21.17.

5.5.1.2.1.'1.5.
551.2.1.1.9.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10.

55121111

55.1.2.1,1.12.

5.5.1.21.1.13,

5.5.1.2.1.1.14,

56 Leasmg .

Preparing: program budgets and schedules: and amendments to
those budgets and schedules; - .

Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

Developing interagency agreements and ngreeme.ms with
subrecipients and coniraclors o carry oul program activities;

Moniloring program activities for prodreas" end compliance wilh

. program :equlremenls

Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for.
submission to HUD;

Coordinaling the sotution of audit and moniloring findings; -

Preparlng reports and olherdocuments dsrectly relatedtothe p(Ogl‘Bm
submissionto HUD;

Evalualing program results against stated objectives;

Managlrig or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignmenls as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibit B.

Travel costs incurred !or official business in carrying out the progra 61;

Administrative services pedofmed under third party contracts or
agreements, mcrudmg such services as general Iegal services,”
accounting serviges, and audit services;

Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services es renlal or purchase of
equipmeént, insurance, ulilities, office supplies, and rental and
mainlenance, bul not purchase, of office space;

Trainin'g on Continuum of Caré requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attendmg HUD-
Sponsared Continuum of Care lrammgs and

Environmental review. Cosls of carrymg outthe enwronmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

When the Conlraclor is leasing the struclure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
lo pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
" to provide housing or supportiva services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
- parent organization, any other related organization(s), or organizalions thal are members
of a pannership, where the parnnership owns the slructure, untess HUD aulhonzed an
exceplion for good cause. ' .

Waypolnt RRH
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5.6.1. Regquiremenls:

§.6.1.1.

56.1.2

5.6.1.3.

5.6.1.4.

5.6.1.5.
5.6.1.6.
56.1.7.

5.6.1.8.
56.1.9.

5.6.1.10.
56.1.11,
5.6.1.12.

5.6.1.13.
5.6.1.14,

Waypsnt RRH
§5-2010-0H3.-04-PERMA 27

Leasing struciures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of 8 structure
or stryctures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition. the rent paid may nol exceed renls
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.
Leasing individual units. When the grants are used 1o pay renl for individual
housing units, the rent paid mus! reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking inlo account the'location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facllities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not.exceed rents
currenily being charged for comparable unils, and Ihe rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market renls,

Utilities. If electricity, gas, and waler are included in the rent, these wiilities may - .
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are nol provided by landlord, these utility
cosls are operating cosls, except for supportive service facilities, If the ‘structure
is bemg used as 3 supportive service faclhry then these  ulility costs ‘are 2
suppontive service cost.

Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contracior may use grani ’
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
renl. An advance paymen! ol last month’s rent may be provided 10 the landlord In
addition to securily deposit and payment of the first monlh's rent.

Occupancy agreements.and subleases. Occupancy agreemenls and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578. 77a).

Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

Program incoms. Occupancy charges and renl coliected from .program
participanls are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
$78.97. .

Transition, Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

Rent pard may only reflect actual costs and musl be reasonable in comparuson 10
tents charged in the area for similar housing units, Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept an file by the Contractor.

The portion of ren! paid with granl iunds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
markel rents.

The Contractor shall pay mclwldual landlords directly; funds may not be ' gwen
direclly to participants 1o pay leasing costs.

Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposils. .

The Contractor cannol Iease a building lhat il already owns to ilseH.

Housing must be in compliance with all Stale and local housing codes, licensing
requirementls, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other

“requirements of thejurisdiction in which the housing is localed regarding the

condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.

EARNE . Contsacior klals [
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5.7. The Conlractor may charge program pammpants rent and utilities (heat hot water); however,
the. amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specuﬁed in HUD regutations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cadle, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, elc. are at the partnapanlsophon

5.8, ‘The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as malch
complele waekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financlal Managemen) System

6.1. Fiscal Contro): The Contractor shall eslablish fisca) control and fund accounling procedures

. which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, granl funds and any required

. nonfederal expenditures. This responsnblhty applies to funds disbursed in direct operauons of
the Contractor.

6,?. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system thal-compii‘e; with 2 CFR pan
200 or such equivalent system as the Stale may require. '

i : -~
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SPECIALPROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contraclor covenants and agrees (that all funds roceived by the Conlractor

“under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contraclor for services provided to ellguble
individuals and, in the hurtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenanis and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Fodoril and State Laws: [/ the Contractor is permitted to detarmine the eligidility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall bo made in accordance with applicable federa) and
state laws, regulations, arders, guidelines. policies ond procedures.

2. Time and Mannor of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Depantment fer that purpose and sholl be made and rémads ot such Umes as are ‘prescribed by
the Depanmem

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination lorms required by the Department, the Convactor
shall mainiain & dola file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include sl
information nacensary to support an eligibility determination and such other infarmalion @s the
Department réquests. The Contractor shall fumish the Oepartment with ail forms and documentation
regarding eligibililty determinations that the Depariment may request of require. .

4, Fair Roaringa: The Conlracior understands that all apglicants lor services hereunder; as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a falr hearing regarding that determination, The
Contractor heroby covenants and agrees that ah applicants for secvices shall be permmed 1o fill out
an application form and that each applicant of re-apphcanl shall be mfovmed of his/her ngm s fair
hearing in accordance with Depariment regulations. .

5. Gratultles or Kickbacks: The Conlraclor agrees that il fs a breach of this Conlract to accept or
make @ payment, graluily or ofer of employmen) on benhall of thg Coniractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work delalled in Exhibit A of this
Conlract. The State may‘terminale this Conlract and any sub-conlracl or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratullies or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
sny officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Conlractor.

6. Rotroactive Paymonts: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contfact of inany
other gocument, conlract or understanding, it is expressly undersiood and ogreed by the partios
herelo, that no payments will be made hereunder lo reimburse the Contractar for cosls incurred for-
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior 1o the Effective Date of the Conlracl
and no payments shall be made for expenses incyrred by (he Contractor for any services provided

. prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (excepl as otherwlse provided by the
tederal reguiations) prior fo 8 determinalion Ihat Ihe ihdividual is eliglibte tor such se:vioes

7. Conditions of Purchago: Norwulhslandmg anything 10 the conlrary cantained in the Contract, nothing
herein eonzamed shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to pur:hase services
hereunder al @ rate which reimburses the Conlactor in excess of the Conltractors costs, at arate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary 10 assure the quality of such service, or ot @
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contraclor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If a1 any time’during the term of this'Conlract or, after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Controclor has used ’
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense olher.lhan such costs, or has received payment
in oxcess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Coalractor 10 Ineligible individuals
or oiher third party funders, the Depariment may elecl to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder, in which avenl new rales shall be eslablished;
7.2.  Deduct from any future payment to the Conlraclor the amounl of any prior reimbursementin

excess of cosis; -~
. ExNdil C - Specia! Provisions ) Contractor tnmab }1’\_
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7.3. Demand repsyment of the oxcesa payment by the Contractor In which event faiture 1o make
such repayment shall conslitule an Event of Default hereunder. Whan the Conlractor is
permitted to determine the elgibiity of individuals for services, the Contraclor agrees to
reimburse the Deporiment for all funds paid by the Department to the Conbractor for services
provided to eny individual whe is found by the Depariment to be inaligibla for such sarvlcas at
any lime during the penod of retention of records established herein,

. RECORDS: MAINTENANCE RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDEN*IIAUTY

8 Malntonanco of Rocords: In addilion lo the el:clbihly records spaclfied above, the Contraclor
covenanls and agrees to maintain the following records during the Conlrad Pcnoc

8.1. Fiscol Records: booke. records. documents and other doto evldoncmg @ind reNacting all cosls
and other expenses incurred by the Contactor in the performance of the Contract. and all
income cecmod or callecied by the Convractar during the Contrac! Period, said records (o be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficienty and
proparly reflect all such cosls and expenses, and which are acceplable (0 the Depariment, end
to Include, without fimitation, all ledgers, books, records. and orlginal evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for malerials, laventories, valuations of
tn-xind contibutions, l'abor time cards, payrolls, and ather records requested or reqwed by.the
Oepariment. -

8.2. Statistica) Records: Statistical, enroliment, sttendance or visit records lor each recipient of
services during the Contract Periad, which records shall include all records of. application and
eligibility (mcludmg all forms required 10 determine cligibibly for each such recup:enl) records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices.submitied to the Depanmen to oblain
payment lo¢ such services,

8.3. Medical Records: Where approprigte and as prescribed by the Depariment regulal-ons the
Contractor ghall relaln medical records on cach pauenurecupienl of servlces

- 9. Audit: Conhnclor shal! submit an annual pudi to the Depariment within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fisca! year. Itis recommended thot the report be prepared In sccordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budgol Circular A-133, "Audils of Stales, Loca! Governmenls, and Non
Profit Organluuons and the provisions of Standards for “Audit of Governmental Organizations;
Programs, Activities and Functions, issuod by the US General Accounting Office (GAO slandards) as
1hey peneln to financial comphancc audits.

9,1, Audil gnd Review: Dunng the term of this Contract end the perlod for retention hereunder the
Department, the United States. Department of Heallh and Human Services, and any of their
designaled reprasentatives shall have accass Lo all reports and records mamlalned pulsuanllo
the Contract for purposes of audit, examinslion, excerpls and tronscripls,

9.2.  Audit Liabllities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations ol the Contracl, it is
underslood and agreed by (he Contractor Ihat the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or fedaral audil exceptions and shall retuin 1o the Depadmenl Bl pay-menls made under the
Contract to which exception has been teken or which have been displiowed because of such an
exceplion.

10. Confidontiality of Records: All Inlormalion, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with tho parformance of the services and the Conlract shall be confidenlial and shalinot
be disclosed by the Conlractor, pravided however, that pursuan Lo slole laws ond the regulations of
the Depariment regarding the use and disclosure of such infarmation, disclosure may be mado to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
direcily connectad 1o the administralion of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use of disclosure by any-party of any informallon concerning a reciplant for any purpose not
directly connectsd with the edministration of the Depariment or the Conlraclor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is ptohiblled except on wnnen consent of the recipienl, his -

_ attorney or guardian, ; .
Exnidil C - Spacial Provislons Contractor Initials ;! ‘
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and condilions contained in o
the Paragraph shall survive the Lermination of the Comrac! for any reason whalsoever, ‘

11, Roporta: Fiscal and Statistical Yhe' Conbractor agrees o submnl the following reports al tha lollowing

times if requested by the Department.

: 11.1.  Intedm Financial Reporls: Wiitien interim financial reports conlaining @ detailed description of

# all costs and non-allowable expenses incuired by the Contractor to the date of the repont and
contoining such other infermation as shall be deemed saUsfoctory By the Department to
justity the'rate of payment herounder, Such Financial Reports shall be submitied on tho form
designoted by the Department or deemed satislactory by the Dapartment.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submilted within thily (30) days afier the end of the lemm
of this Conlract. The Fina) Report shall be in 2 form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contoin a summary siatement @f progress toward gosis cnd obieclrvn stated in theProposal
and other inro:mauon requnred by the Department:

12. Completion of Sorvices: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of theo
maximum number of units provided for in the Conlract and upon paymant of the price limilation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the paries hereunder (except such obligalions'as,
by the terms of the Contracl are lo be performed aher the and ol the tarm of this Contract and/or

“survive the terminalion of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, thal if, upon review of the
Final Expendituro Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by tha Contraclor os
costs hergunder the Depatment ehall retain the right, al lts discretion, lo deduct the amounl of such
expoensos as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Crodits: All documents, notlces, press releases, research repors and other materials prepared
during or resulling from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the foliowing
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (repon, documem elc.) was financed under a Conlracl with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in par
by the State of New Hampshiro and/or such other !undlng sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Oepanment of Henlth_ and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownorship: All malerials (written, video, audio) produced of
purchased under the conlract shall have prior approval from DHHRS belore printing, production,
dislribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, inéluding, bul not limited to, brochures, resource direclories, prolocols or guidelines,
poslers or reports. Conlraclor shatl not reproduce any malenals produced under the contraciwithout
priof written gpproval from DHHS,

15. Operatlon of Facliitios: Compllanco with Laws and Rogulatlons: In the oporahon of any facilllies
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply wilh all laws, orders and regulations of federal, .
slale, counly and municipal authorilies and-wilth any direclion of any Public Officer or officers
pursuarit to laws which shall Impose an order of duty upon the contractor with raspecl to the
operation of the facility or (he provision of the services at such lacllily. If any governmental license or .
permil ghall be required for the operation of Ihe 53id facility or the performance of the s3id sorvices,
the Contractor will procure said tlicense or permil. and will a1 8!l limes comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permil. In connection with the foregoing requirements, Ihe
Contractor hereby covenants and agroos that, during the term ol this Contracl the facilitios shall’
comply with oll rules,-orders, regulations, and requirements of the Stale Office of the Fire Mntshaland
the loca fire proteclion agency, and shall be in conformance wilh local building and toning codes, by-
lawe and regulations.

16. Equal Employmant Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Conlractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Olfice for Civil Righta, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

= ~
Exhidil-C - Spodip! Provislons Conlrpclor Initialg Q‘_‘
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17.

18

18.

more employeos, it will maintain a ¢urrent EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, centitying that its EEOP is on file. For redipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient wil) provide an
EEQP Certification Form 1o the OCR centifying it is not required to ‘submil.or maintain an EEOP. Non-

.profit organizations; Indian Trives, and medical and educalional institutions are exempt from the .

EEOP requirement, bul are required lo sUbmit a certification form lo the OCR lo daim'the exempuon
EEQP, Cenlfmﬂon Forms are available ot: hip:/iwww.ojp. usdc;labowoulpdlsloen pdt.

'umlled Engll.h Proncioncy (LEP): An clarifiad by Executive Order 13186 lmprowng Access lo

Services far parsons with Limited English Proflciancy, and resulling agency guidance, nationalorigin
discriminalion includes discriminalion on the basis of limited English proficlency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1888 ond Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1884, Controctors must 1ake muon:blo slops 1o ensure that LEP persons hove
meaningful access loits 9-’00!’8"19

Pilot Program for Enhancemont of Contractor Employoo Whistioblowor ‘Pro.toctJons The
following shatl apply to 3l conlracts that exceed the Slmphﬁed AcQu-amon l'hxeshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000) .

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEOLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TQ INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
' WHSTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(2) This contract and employoes wonung on this contracl will be wblecl to the wh:slreblower rights
ond remedies in the pilol program on Conlractor employee whistleblower prolections established at
41 U.5.C. 4712 by soction 828 of he Nationa! Defense Aulhorlzallon Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112:239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) Tha Conlractor shall inform ils empkwe‘es in wrifing, in Lhe predominant Ianguag.e of the workforce,
of employee whistlablower rights and prolections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.808 of the Federa) Acquisition Regulation,

(¢) The Conlractor shall insert the substance o! this clause, including this paragraph (c), in ail
subcantracts over the simplified acquisition threshald, )

Subcontractors: DHHS recogmzes thal the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
grealer expertise to pedonn cernain health core services or funclions for elﬁcmncy or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibilily and accountabilily for tho tunction(s). Prior to
subcontracting. tho Contraclor ghall evaluate the subcontractor's abllity io perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through s wrillen-ggreement thal specifies activilies and reporting
responsiblities of the subconltracior and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subconiractor's performance is nol adequale. Subcontractors are subdject lo'the same contraciual
condilions as the ‘Contractor and the Conlractor Is responsiblo to onswie subcontracior compliance
with those condilions.

When the Contractor delegales a funclfo:n 10 @ subcontractor, the Conlractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcoptraclor's abilily lo perform the aclivities, belore delegaling
the function

16.2.  Have @ wiitten agréement with the wbconlraclor that specifios aclivities and rcpod:ng
responsibililies and how sanctionsiievocalion will be managed il the subcontracior's
performance is not adequale

19.3.  Monitor the subconiractor's pedormance on 8n ongoing basis

Exhibil € - Special Provislons Contactor inliials gﬁ_
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19.4.-

18.5.

Provide to DHHS an annua! schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions angd
responsibilities, and when Lhe subconlractor's pedaormance will be reviawed
DHHS shall, at its discration, review and approve alt subconuacls‘

! It the Contraclor identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvemam are identified, the Contraclor shall
take corrective aclion.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1.
20.2.
203
20.4.
20.5.

20.6.

oI

COSTS: Shall mean those direct pnd indirect items of expense determined by the Deportment
to be pliowable and reimbursable In occordonce with cost and accounling principles established
in accordance with state and federa! laws, regulalions. nules ond orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Depariment of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: It applicable, shall mean the documen! submitied by the Contraclor on a

form or lorms required by the Depaniment and conlaining a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Conlractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cosl and sources ol revenue for each serwcc to bu providad
under the Conlract.

UNIT: For cach service (hat the Conltractor is L0 provide to aligible individuals hereunder, shill
mean that period of lime or that specified aclivity determined by the Depantment and spodr ed
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federn! or slate laws, tegulalions, rules, orders, nnd
policies, elc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed lo moan
all such laws, regurabons elc. as lhey may be amended or revised from Ilme to time.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplanl Bny exisling federal funds available for Ihese services. g

| ‘tr
Em C « Specia Provislons . Contraclor Inlllsty ]
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VISIONS YO STANDARD CONTRAC V)

1. Roviniont.to Form P-37, Gonoral Provisions

1.1, Section 4, Condill .is replaced as follows:

Notwithsianding any provision of 1his Agreemeni to the contrary, dll obligations of the State
herpunder, including withoul limilation, the cantinuance ol. payments, in whole or in psn,
under this Agroement are contingenl upon conlinued oppropriation or availabdility of funds.
including ony subsequent changes o the appropriation or availability of funds sffected by
any slate or federel Feg-s!abvo or exccullve sction that raduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or avaitabiity of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibil A, Scope of Services, in whale or In pant. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments herounder in @xcess of appropriated or available funds, In ~
the evenl of a reduclion, terminalion or modification of 8pproprialed or available funds, the
Stiale shall have (he right to wilhhold payment uatit such fundis become available, il ever.
The State shall.have the right to raduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon ‘giving the Conlractor nolice of such’ reduction. temmination or
modification. The State shal no! be required Lo transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) idenlified in block 1.6 of the Ganeral Provisions, Accoun!
Number, or any other account in tho ovent funds are reduced of unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Iatmination. Is amended by adding the following language:

. 10 1 The Siate may lerminate the A'grecmcn! 8l any lime lor any reason, al the sole discretion of
. the State, 30 days afler givirg the Conlraclor written notice that the State is exescising its
opllon lo terminate the Agreemaent.

10.2 In the event of eatly termination, the Coniractor shall, wlthm 15 days of nolice. of early
_termination, develop and submit-lo the State o Tronsition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but nol limited to, idenlifying the present and future needs ol clients
receiving semces under the'Agreement and eslablishes a process lo meet those needs.

10.3 The Cmtraclur shall fully cooporale with the State and shall promplly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limiled 1o, any information or
data requesled by the State relaled to the lermination of the Agreement and Transilion Plan
and shall provide ongolng communication and revisions of the Transition Plan lo the Stale
23 requetlea -

10.4 In the evenl that services under the Agreemenl, including bul not limited to clients receiving
services undér the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
enlily including conlracted providess or the Stale, the Contractor shall provide o process lor
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish  method of nolifying clients and olher affected individuals
. abou! the, ransilion, The Contraclor- shall include the proposed communications in ils
) Transition Plan supmmed 1o the State as described above.
" 2. Ronowal:

2.4, The Depanment reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additions! years,
contingent upon salisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement .of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council, .

=%

. -~
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CERTIFICAY(ON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Tille V, Subtitle D: 44
U.5,C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees o have the Contractor's represeniative, as identified in Sections
.11 8nd 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OT HEF; THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICéS -CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT.OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This centification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 51515160 of the Orug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Sublille D: 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, .
1989 regulalions were amended and pudlished a5 Part Il of the May 25, 1980 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
conlraclors), prior 1o award, that they will maintain 8 drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides thal & grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-conlraclors) that is 8 State
may elect lo make one centificalion to the Departmenl in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for

" each grant during the federa) fiscal year covered by, Ihe certification. The certificale sel out below is &
matenal representation of fact upan which reliance is placed when Ihe agency awards the granl, False

centification or violation of the cenification shall be grounds for suspension of pa‘yments suspension or

terminalion of grants, or goverament Mde suspension or debarment. Conlractors using nus form should
send it lo; .o

Commissioner

NH Oepartmenl of Health 8nd Human Senvices
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 0330)-6505

1. The grantee certifias that it will or will continue 10 provide a drug-lree workplace by:

1.1, Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distrbution,

. dispensing, possession or use of a controfled subslance is prohibiled in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the octions that will be taken against employees for violation of such'
. prohibition;’
1.2.  Establishing an ongoing drug-ree- awareness program to inform employees about
1:2.1. .The dangers ol drug sbuse in the workplace:
1.2.2.  The grantee’s policy of malintaining a drug-free workplace
1.2.3.  Any avallable drug counseling, rehabilitalion, and employee assistance programs; snd
1.2.4. The penallies that may be imposed upon employees tor drug Bbuse violalions
s occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Makmg It @ requirement that each employee to be engaged in the pedormance of Ihe gran! be
given a copy ol .the stalement required by paragraph (a);

1.4, Notilying the employee in the siatemenl required by paugwph () tha, as a condition of
employmen) Under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1,  Abide by the terms of the slalement; and
1.4.2, 'Notily the employer in-wailing of his or her conviction for 3 \nora!uon of a crimina) dtug

slplule occurring in Ihe workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Nolitying the agency in wriling, within ten calendar days aker recerving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employ¢e of olherwise receiving actual notice of such convicilon,
Employers of canvicled employees must provide nolice, including pasition title, to every grant
officer on whose grant aclivity the convicled employee was working, unless the Federal ngency

-

Exnibh O - Certfication r'eaarrﬁng Orug Free Vendar Iatilaty k ;
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has deslgnated a central point for the recelpt of such notices. Nolice shafl Include the
E identification number(s) of each alfected grani;
' 1.6. Taklng one of the following actlons, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice und:r

subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicled

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up lo and mdudlng
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabililation Act of 1973, as
omended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to pariicipate salisfaclorily in o.drug abuse assistance of
rehabililation program approved for such purposes by 8 Federal Stale, oriocal health,

: faw enforcement, or ather appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making 8 good faith effort to continue to.mpinlain @ drug -free workplace through
Implementation of paragrephs 1.1, 1.2,1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the pedarmance of work done i in-
conngctlon with the specific grant.

-

Place or.Perfonnanoe (street zddress, cily, county, stale, zip code) (lisl each localion)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor'Name: b\ﬂ‘-‘(i“\ r

'S/lojt’\

Date = ’ " Name: L\L};. plaNtL AJ WWWO
' ' Tie: @0 /050

Exnibl D - Cenlfcation regarding Daug Free . Vendor tnklak é ;
WoAplaco Requirements
CLOM/IIOT1) Page 20l 2 Date E[IQZIﬁ



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AEBA-A2DA7TA515015

' DocuSign Envelope 10: AB436C85-CECA-480B-A78D-95EF7E400385 . .

Now Hnmpshlro Dapanmom of Health and Human Sarvices
Exhibit €

CERT|FICATION.REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees 10 comply wilh the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restriclions on Lobbying, ond
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees o have the Conlractor’s representative, as identified in Sectians 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the (dllowing Cenification:

US'DEPARTMENT OF 'HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate apphuble program covered):,
*Temporary Asslatance to Needy Famllies under Title IV-A
*Chitd Suppon Enforcement Program under Tille IV-O
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Tille XIX

- *Community Services Block Grant under Tille VI .
*Chilg Care Development Block Grant under Yitle IV

The undersigned centifies, to the dest of his or. her knowledge and betie, ihat:

1. No Federal oppropriated funds have been pald or wnll.be paid by or on behall of the undersigned, 1o
any person lor influencing or attempling to influence an officer or employee of 8ny agency, a Member
ol Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
: cannection with the awarding of any Federa! conlracl, continuation, renewa), amendment, of
! ) modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperallve agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee of sub-conlractor).

2. Ilany funds other than Federal appropnaled funds have been paid or will be paid to any pergon for
influencing or atiempling to influence an office: or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or emgloyee of Congress, or aa employee of @ Member of Congress in connection with Ihis

' Federal cantracl,-gran), loan, or coaperative agreement (and by speclfic mentlon sub-grantee or sub-
conlractor), the undcrsxgned shall complele and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobdying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and idenlified as Standard Exhibit E-L.)

3. The undermgned shall require that the language of this cerdification be included in the award
document far sub-awards at all liers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and conleacts under grants..
loans, and cooperalive agreements) and thal all sub-recipients shall certify and'disclose accordingly.

This cantification is 8 material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this !ransactioh

" was made or enitered inlo. Submissian of this centfication is a prerequisite for making or enlering Into this
transaclion imposed by Seclion 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who (fails to file (he required
certification shall be subject to a civi) penalty of no! less than $10,000 and not more than $400,000 for
each such fallure. ”

Vendor.N'ame: Waslawn (

5/10/:”\ | VM

Dafe ‘ ?ame (;.u‘,. P«Np-l('l,u nuy)
o " G /0

Exnidit € - Cortcation Regsrding Lobdylng Vendor Inltlahs |

CuDreIION . Page ol - Date o ﬂ\




DocuSign Envelope ID: AA5149EE-FC33-4DF5-AE6A-A2DATA515015

DocuSign Envetope 10: AB438C86-CECA-4BOB-ATED-95EF TE400385

\

New Hampshlro Department of Hoalth and Human Services

Exhibit'F
3 DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
N SIBILITY .

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the Genersl Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12548 and 45 CFR Pan 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matiers, and lurther agrees to have the Conlraclor's <
represenlalive, as Idenllﬁed in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generat va-slons execule the following
Cenlfication: .

INSTRUCT!ONS FOR CERTIFICATION ¢ H
By signing and submitting this proposal (conliract), the prospecuve prmary panlclpam is pro\ddlng the
certification set out betow, ° o

2 Tne mab:hry of & person to provide the certification required below wil not necessarily resull in denial
of participalion in this covered Iransaction.” I'necessary, the prospective paricipant shal) submit an
explanation of why Il cannot providé the certification. The certification or exptanation will be
¢onsidered I connection with the NH Department ol Heahh and Human Services' (ORXHS)
delerminalion whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of Ihe prospeclive primary

. participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disquality such person from participation in
th transaction, °

3. The cedification in this clause is a maledal representalion of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined 10 enler inlo this lransaction. If it is later delermined that the prospeclive
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous cenification, In addition lo olher remedies
available to the Federal Gavernment, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defaull.

4. The prospeclive primary participant.shall provide immediate wriltan nolice to the DMMS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitied il 8l any lime (he prospeclive primary paricipant learns
that its cerificalion was erronzous when submilted or has decome erroneous by reason ol changed
circumstances.

5. "The terma “covered transaction,” “debarred,’” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower licr covered
transaclion,” "panicipanl,” “person,” ‘primary covered transaction,” “prncipal,” "proposal,” and
*voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Oefinilians and
Coverage seclions of the rules implementing Executive Oider 125‘9 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definilions. .

6. The prospeclive pnmavy pamctpanl agrees by submilting this proposal (contract} that, should the
proposed covered lransaclion be entered into, it shall not knowingly enler into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded:
from parlicipation in Ihis covered lransaction, uniess authorized by OHHS.

7. The praspacuve primary participant furiher agrees. by submitting thls proposal thal il will Include lhe

clause litled "Ceflificalion Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibliity and Voluniary Exclusion -

Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, withou! modification, in all lower tier covered
‘transactions ond in all solicitations for lower lier covered transaclions,

8. A participant In 3 covered Iransaction may'rely upon a certification of a prospéctive paricipantin a
" lower tier covered lransaclion thal il Is no} debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
- from the covered transaction, unless'dl knows that Ihe cedification is.erroneous. A participant may
decide the metod and frequency by which It determines the eliglbllity of its principals. Each
participant may, but is nol required to, check the Nonprocurement List {of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be coasirued lo require eslablishment 6' a system of records
- in order lo render in good faith the cenlificalion required by this clause. The knowledge and

) ' L E ﬁ/
Exhibll F - Cenificalion Regarding Ocbormend, Sutpension Vendar Inkials
And Other Reapansibillly Matters
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information of 8 participant is not required to exceed that which is.normally possessed by o prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. ‘

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these inslructions. if a participant in &
‘covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction wilh a person who s
suspended, debamed, ineligible, or voluntarlly excluded from participation in this transaclion, in
addilion 10 ather remedies avaliable (o the Federal governmen), DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cguse or defaull. .

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS .
11. The prospeclive primary participant certifies 1o the best of its knowtedge and beliel, that it and its
principals: e ’ . . . '
11.1. are not prasently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligidle, or
-voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depariment or agency:
11,2. have nol within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicled ol or had
i a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud ar a criminal offense In
. connection with oblaining, attempling to oblain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
‘transaction or 8 contract under 8 public ansaction; viclation of Feders! or Slale antitrus!
statutes or commission of embezziement, theh, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false stalements, of receving stolen property; .
11.3. are no! presently indicled for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Siate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph ({)(b)
. ol this centification; and ; I .
11.4. have nol wilhin a three-year period preceding (his application/proposal had one or more public
lransactions (Federa), Stale or local) termingted for cause or default.

12. Wnere (he prospeclive primary panticipant is unable 1o cerlify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospeclive padicipant shall um?ch an explanation to this proposal’(contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS g e .

13. By signing and submiting this tower lier proposal {contract). the praspective lower lier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Pan 76, certifies to Ihe best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. ‘are no! presently debarred, suspended, proposed (ot debasment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded trom paricipation in this Iransaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower ties participant is unable to cenify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach &n explanation to this proposal (cantract). ’

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by subminting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Cedification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligidility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Ties Covered Transactions,” withoul modificalion in all lower lier covered
transaclions and in all solicltations for lower lier covered lransactions.

Vendor Name: \DJA T AT

Shofin

Date

: Exhidl] £ - Cenification Regarding Dobsrment, Suspension  Vendor Inillsts CD:‘ i
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-CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEOERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZAT!ONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Conlraclor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions, to execute the following
cerification: .

Vendor will comply, snd will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requiraments, which may inzlude:

- 1he Omaibus Crdme Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.5.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
reciplents of federat funding under this slatute lrom discriminating, either in'employment practices or in

the delivery of services or benefils, on the basis-of race, color, religion, natlonal origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients ta produce an Equa! Employment Opportunily Plan;

- the Juvenile Juslice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42'U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligalions of the Safe Sireels Act. Recipients of (ederal funding under this
statule are prohibited from discriminaling, either in employment practices ot in the delivery of services or
benefils, on the basis of rice, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- ihe Civil Righls Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibils recipients of federal financlal
assislance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or aclivity).

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Seclion 794), which prohibits rec:pnenls of Federal inancial
assistance lrom discriminating on the basis of disabllity, in regard to employmeni and thc delrvely of
services or benefils, in any program or-activity,

. Ihe Americans wilh Dlsabmtles Act of 19390 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131- 34) which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunily for persons with disabilities in employment, State and Iowl
govemment services, public accommodalions, commcrcnal facililes, end transportation; .

_- the Educalion Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S. C ‘Seclions 1681, 1683, 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisled educauon programs;

- the Age Discriminalion Acl of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which proh'blls dls¢nmmauun on the
basis of age in programs o aclivities rccelvmg Federa! linancia! assistence. 11 does not include
emplaymen disciminalion;

- 28 CF.R. pl. 31 (U. S Depantment of Jusnce Regulations — 0JJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
{U.S. Department of Juslice Regulations — Nondiscimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies’
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal prolection of the laws (or faith-based and communily
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-meking
criteria for parinerships with taith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Depariment of Juslice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whislleblower protections 41 U.5.C. §4712 and The National Delense Authorizalion
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-238, enacled January 2, 2013) the.Pilot ‘Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislleblower Pratections, which protects employees against -
reprisal for cértain whistle blowing activities in connection wilh federal grants and conlracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards Ihe grant. False cenification or violation of the certification sha!l be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspensbn or termination of grants, or govemmen! wide suspension or

debament,
Evhibll G ' P
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in the event a Federal or State coun or Federal or Stale administralive agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a du¢ process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, nalional origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the-recipient will forward a copy of the finding lo the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracling agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Sennccs ond
to the Depaﬂmenl of Heallh and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General P:ovmons agrees by signature of the Comractor s
represenialive as ldentifiad in Seclions 1. 11 and 1.12°0f the General Provls:ons to execute the following
cenification:

1. By signing ang aubmlulng mls proposal (commcl) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: WK ‘!?B-\f

615110\ MM

Date ’ ' Name: [ ~ .
. Tdle:
- “ ?_'\L';A,d'/ 0
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CERTIFICAT|ON REGARDING ENYIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Pan C:- Environmenia) Tobacco SmoXke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Ac1), requires that smoking not be permiitted in any portion of any indoor facllity owned or leased or
contracted for by an enlity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
ot library services to chlldren under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal granl, conlracy, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply o children's service's provided in privale residences, (acilities funded salely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faclikies used for Inpatient drug or alcoheol treatment, Fallure
10 comply with the provisions of the law may resut in the Imposition of 8 civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition.of an admintsirgtive compllance order on the responsible entity. .

The Vendor dentified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
represeniative as identified in Section 4.11 and 1.12 of the General Proyisions, to execute the following

cenification: '

1. + By signing and submitting this contracl, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable elorts to comply with
al gpplicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Pan p. known as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994.

Vendor Name: \Qﬁ (0“\( :

§/w'/l“{

Date

Name:,‘)bm A H‘NNQ- U’I—OUM
Tite:" —~ } :

inesdond’/ 60,

Exhibli M - Cenltcation Regarding Vendor Inlllt!s'
Envisonmaental Tobacco Smoke
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EALTH INSURANC BLI (o
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply wilh the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Acl, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity”
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Depariment of Heahh and Human Services.

(1 Pefinitions. )
a. “Breach: shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach’ in seclion 15& 402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. Qgﬁm;gg Associale” has the meaning given such term in seclion 160 103 of Title 45, Code
of Federel Regulations. .

c. “Covered Entity” has lhe meaning given such termin sechon 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Design a]gg Rgcg(d Set” shall have the same meanmg as the lerm “designaled record set*
in 45 CFR Secllon 164, 501

e. 'QW shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregahon in 45 CFR
Section 164,501,

I "Hgg !D Cpare Operatigns” shall have lhe same meaning as the term *health care’ operauons
in 45 CFR Seclion 164.501.

g. THITECH Act means the Health Information Technology for Econamic and'Ciinicas Health"
Acl, TitleXili, Sublitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvesiment Act of

2005.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 Public Law
104-181 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually [dentifiable Heallh
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. -

i, “lndividual” shall have the same meaning as the lerm “individual” in 45 CFR Seclion 160.103
-and shall include & person who qualifies es a personal represeniative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

i. “Privacy Rule’ ghall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Heallh
Infarmalion at 45 CFR Paris 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services,

k. “Projected Health |nformation® shall have the same meaning as the term “protecled health
.information® in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limiled to the information created or received by

Business Assaciate from or on behall of Covered Entity. . s
3 "re
w2014, Exhidll | Vendor taliials &[
: - Health lnsurance Portabllity Act
Business Assodala Agreement
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I. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the tenm “required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.” ’

“m, “Secretary” shall mean the Secrelary of the Depantment of Health and Human Sesvices or
_ hismer designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Prolected
Health Infarmation at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpan C, and emendments thereto,

0. -Unsecyred Protected Healih |nformation” means protected healih information thal is nol
secured by e technology siandard thal renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a slandards developing organization that is accredited by the American Nationa) Standards .
Institule. . -

p. Other Definiligns - All terms not otherwise defineéd herein shall-have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amendéd from lime to time, and the -
HITECH . . .
Act.

{2) Business Asaociate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information,

2. - Business Associale shall no! use, disclose, maintain or transmil Prolected Health
Information (PHI).except as reasonably necessary lo provide Ihe services oullined under’
Fa Exhidit A of the Agreemenl. Furher, Business Assaciale, including but nol limiled to all
its direclors, officers; employees and agents, shall nol use, disclose, maintain or {ransmit -
PHI in any manner that would constilute 3 violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associale may use or disclose PH. L
[ For the proper managemen! and administralion of the Business Associate;
T As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; of
. For data aggregalion purposes for the heallh care operations of Covered
Enlity. ‘ '
€. To the exien! Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHIta 2

third parly, Business Associate musl obtain, prior lo making any. such -disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from (he third pacy thai such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed 1o the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notity Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Securly, and Breach Notificalion
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, 1o the extent il has obtained
knowledge of such breach. i i :

d. The Business Associate shall nol, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreemenl, disclose any PH1in response lo &
reques! for disclosure on the basis thal il is required by law, without firs| nolifying

_Covered Entity so thal Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
lo seek appropriale relief. 1f Covered Enlity objects to such disclosure, the Business

2084 . Exhiph | : Vendor Inlials
Heatth insurance Podsblilty Act

Buslhess Assodsla Agicemen) '
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(3)

2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausied all
remedies.

It the Covered Entity nolifies the Business Associale thal Covered Enlity has agreed 10
be bound by addilional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuani to the Privacy end Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional resirictions and shall nat disclose PHI in violation of

. such additlonsl restrictions and shell abide by any addilions! security safeguards.

o) i a lvitie siness Assoc'a [

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
afer the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreemenl including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident thal may have an impact on the
protected health ilnfom\ation of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when il becomes

aware of any of the above silualions. The risk assessmenl shall include, but nol be ~
{imited to: '

o The nalure and extent of the protected healih information involved, mcludmg the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was Bctuatly acquired or viewed

o The exienlto whlch the risk to the protecled heauh infarmation has been
mitigated.

‘The Business Associsle shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the

breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and .
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of ils inlerna) policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or

.recelved by the Business Associale on behslf of Covered Enlity to the Sécretary for .
. purposes ol determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and

Securnty Rule.

Business Associate shall require all'of Its business associates thal receive, use or have
access lo PHI under the Agreement, to agree In wriling lo adhere to the same

“restrictions and-condilions on the use and disclosure of PHI contgined herein, including

the duty to return or'destroy the PHI as provided under Seclion 3 {l). The Covered Enlity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Conlractor’s intended business associales, who will be recelving PH!

Extidh | Vendor intialy
Mealih Insurance Poradlly Ac :

Buainess Assaclale Agreement
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putsuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such

- business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
- conlract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpoase of use and disclosure of

protected health information.

Within five (5) businéss days of receipt of a written request from.Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal busineas hours al its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure

- of PH) to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Enlity to determine

Business Associate's compliance wilh the terms of the Agreement,

Within ten (10) business days of receiving & written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access 10 PHI in a Designated Record Set to the.
Covered Enlity, or as directed by Covered Entity, 1o an individual in order 1o meet lhe
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. . .

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wntlen request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or g record about an individual contained in a Designated Record

- Sel, the Business Associate shali make such PHI available 1o Covered Entity for

amendment and incorparate any such amendmeni to enable Covered Entity 10 fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Seclion 164.526.

_Business Associste shall docurnenl such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Enlity lo respond 10 a request by an
individual for an accounting of dlsclosures of PHlin accordance ‘with 45 CFR Section
164. 528

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Cove'red Enlity for a

request for an accounting of disclosures aof PHI, Business Associale shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fullill its obligations
to-pravide 8n accounling of disclosures with respect 1o PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of or accounting of PHI

directly from the Business Associale, the Business Assaclate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Enlity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requesis. However, il forwarding the
individual's request 10 Covered Enmy wouki cause Covered Entity or the Business
Assaciale to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rute, the Business Associsle
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Enmy of such response as soon as praclncab!e

© Withini len (10) business days of termination of the Agreemem_ for any reason, the -

Business Associate shall return or deslroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PH)
received.from, or created or received by the Business Assaciale in conneclion with the
Agreemeni, and shall nol relain any copies or back-up tapes af such PHY. If relurn or
destruction is nol feasible, or the disposition of the PH) has been otherwise agreed lo in
the Agreement, Busingss Associate shall continue to extend the proleclions of the
Agreement, lo such PHI and limit furiher uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the relurn or destruction infeasible, for so long as Businez .

' Exhidlid Vendor Inillals
MHealth Insuronca Ponabllity Act

Business Assodsle Agreement
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Associate maintgins such PHI. If Covered Entity, in ils sole discretion, tequires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associale sha!l cerlify to
Covered Enmy that the PHI has been deslroyed

(4) QObligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall nolity Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s).in ils
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, 16 Ihe extent tha! such change or limitation may affecl Business Associale's
use or disclosura of PHI. .

b. Covered Enlity shall promptly nolil‘y Business Associale of any changes in, or revocalion
of permission provided to Covered Enlity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

. Covered enlity shall prompt&‘nolify Business Associale of any restrictions on the use or
" disclosure of PHI that Covered Enlity has egreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may aflect Business Associale's use or disclosure of
PH), .

Y

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Cavered Enlity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
‘Entity's knowledge of & breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement sel forth herein as Exhibit . The Covered Entity may eilhes immediately
terminale the Agreement of provide an opportunily for Business Associate 10 cure the .
alleged breach within 8 timeframe specified by Covered Entity. tf Covered Entity.
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secrelary.

(6) Miscellaneous
8. Mﬂm&ﬂiﬂm&h@m All terms used, bul not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the seme meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
‘from fime 10 lime. A reference in the.Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section ih the Privacy and Security Rule means the Seclion as in effec! or as

- amended. ;

b. Amendment. Covered Entily and Business Associale agree to take such aclion.as is
necessary to-amend the Agreement, from time (o time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requiremenis of HIPAA, the Privacy end
Security Rule, and applicable federa! and state law.

€ Data Ownershi p. The Business Assoc-ate acknowledges thal it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or crealed on behall of Covered Enlity.

g Interpretation. The parties agree thal any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permil Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rulerz‘q

w014 Exian | Vendor triiats _ WY
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e Seqreaation. |f any term or condition of this Exhibit-| or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect wilhaut the invalid term or condilion; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

{ Suryival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return ot
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) @ and Paragraph 13 of the
slandard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the , Agreemenl

© IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly execuled this Exhidit (.

Department of Health and Human Services . AWM AT

"The State (g,::j: of the Vendo ’L\,\/__

Signalure of Authorized Represenlalive

/Ebll\% AVWA 52 DE Y OVEl

Name of Authorized Representative Nameé’of Authorized Representative

_Dfechr, DLLES fecoqd /@

ed Representative

Title of Authorized Representative . Title of Authorized Representative
5/[5,'? _ 6/n/l
Date A Date

-
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CERTIFIC ARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND T ARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transpatency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal lo or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data telalg'd to executive compensation and associated first-lier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
inltial award is below $25.000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a tolal award equal to or over
$25,000, ihe award |3 subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, 88 of ine cale of the award.
-In secordance with 2 CFR Pan 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Depanment of Heatth end Human Services (OHHS) must repon the following information for any :
subaward or contract 8ward subjéct to the FFATA reponing requirements: "
Name of entity .
Amount of oward
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Progfam source
Award litle descriptive of the purpese of the funding aclion
Location of the enlily
Principle place of performance .
Unique igentifier of the entity (DUNS #) .
0. Tolal'compensalion and names of the lop five executives if;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are fram the Federal governmenl,’and those

revenues-are grenter than $25M snnually and .
10.2. Compensation informalion is not already available thcough reporting to the SEC.

2OBNDRE LN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required dala by (he end of the manth, ptus 30 days, in which
the award o award amendment is made. . ) o

The Vendor identified in.Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federa) Funding Accountability and Transparency Acl, Public Lew 109-282 and Public'Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Pant 170 (Reporting Subaward and Execulive Compensalion information), end further agrees -
to have the Coniractor’s representative, as identified in Seclions 1.113and 1.12 of the Genesal Provisions
execute the following Certification: .

The below named Vendor agrees lo provide needed information 8s oullined above to the NH Department
of Heaalth and Human Services_and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial

Accountability and Transparency Acl..
. . -
Vendor Name: WA 0\\" {

M)

Sfofty

Date 7 ' Ne \r
itle: .
Qe goast /(<0
Exhidn J - Centification Regarding the Feders! Funding Vengor nltils
+ Accounlabillly And Transparency Adl (FFATA) CompRance
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As the Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify (hat the responses o the
belaw listed questions are true and accurale.

.i. The DUNS number for your entity is: 007 gSO Cp'05

s 2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal yeor, did your business or organization
* receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracls, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-granis, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annua)
gross revenues from U.S. federal controcls, subcontracts, toons, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperalive agreements?

X NO YES

I the answer 1o #2 above Is NO, stap here

Il the answer lo 2 above Is YES, please answer the fdlowing:
3. Does the public have access to infdrmalion aboul the compensation of the executlves in your
business or organization through periodic repons filed under section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securilies
.Exchange Actof 1934 (15U.8.C. 7em(a) 780(d)) or seclion 6104 of the laternsl Revenue Code of
19867
NO YES
Il the answer to #3 above is YES, slop here
If the answer to ¥3 above is NO, please answer the following'

4. The names and compensalnon of the ﬁve mosl highty compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Aroun!;

Name: . Amount;
Name: - Amounl:
Name: Amount:
Name: ' Amouni;
Exhlbil J - Cenificallon Regerding the Federsl Fundlng - Vendor Inhidls % l

: Accountabilly And Tranaparency Ad (FFATA) CompEanco
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A. Definitions _
The following lerms may be reflected and have'n_xe dascribed meaning in this document:

1. “Breach® means the loss of conlrol, compromise, uUnauthorized disclosure,
unaulhorized acquisilion, unavthorized access, or any similar .terin referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an' other than
authorized, purpose have access or potential access to personally (dentifiable

'infOrmation whether physical or electronic. With regard lo Protected Health
Information, * Breach™ shall have the same meaning as the lerm 'Breach in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regutations. ]

2. “Computer Securty Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Securilty
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, Nalional Institute of Siandards and Technology, U.S. Departmenl
of Commerce

3 ,'Conﬁdemiai Information® or “Confidential Data™ means all confidentia! information
disciosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and persanal information including without limitation, Substance.
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidentia) Informalion also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Depariment of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracled .
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This.information includes, but is not limited lo
. Protecied Health information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PF1), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social ‘Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI) and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User” means any person or enlity {e.g., comraclor contraclor's employee
business associale, subcontractor, other downstream user, elc.) that receives
DHHS dala or derivative data in accordance wilh the terms of this Conlracl.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health fnsurance Portability and Accountability Acl of 1998 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder,

6. ‘Incidenl’ means an act thal polenlially violales an explicit or implied security policy,
. which Includes aitempts (either falled or successiul) to gain unauthorized access o a

_ syslem.or ils data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the  unauthorized use of
o system for the processing or slorage ‘of data; and changes to system. hardware,
fiumware, or software characleristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, tncidents include the loss of dala through theft or device misplacement, loss

or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or eleclronic

“VS. Lesl update 10709/18 Exhbh K Contractor Inilshs @ﬁ]
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mail, all of which may have the potenlial to put lhe dala al risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. '

7. "Open Wireless Network® means any network or segment of a8 network thal is
no! designaled by the State of New Hampshire's Depariment of Information
Technology: or delegate as & prolected network (designed, tested, end
approved, by means of the State, to transmil) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypied PI1, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information’ (or “PI’) means information which can be used to distinguish
or frace an individua!l's identily, such as their.name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biomelric records, elc.,
alone, or when combined with other persona! or identifying information which is linked
or linkable lo a spec:l'lc individual, such as date and,place of bu1h mother's maiden
name, elc.

9. “Privacy Rule® shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Indwldually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgaled under HIPAA by the United,
States Depariment of Health and Human Services. '

10. "Protected Heallth Informalion” (or *PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
.definition_of "Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C. F R.§
"160.103:

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Prolected Heallh Informalion at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendmenis
thereto. A

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Informalion that is
. not secured by a technology standard thal renders Prolected Health Information
.unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unaulhorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developmg organizalion that is accredited by
the American Nationa) Standards Insmule

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Busingss Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Conlractor must nol use, dlsc!ose maintain or transmit Cenfidential In[ormahon
excepl as reasonably necessary as ouliined under.this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its direclors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PH) in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule. * '

2. The Conlractor must not disclose any Confidential Informalnon in response 10 2

V5. Lest updato 10709718 Exhibll K ¥ Contractor Inlists L . i
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request for disclosure on the basis thal il is required by law, in response to 8
subpoena, elc., withoul first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has an opponumty to
consent or ob;ect 10 the disclosure,

3. if DHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additiona!

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or secufity safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and musl not disclose PHI in violation of such addilional
restndions and must abide by any additional securily saleguards. ‘

4. The Conlramor sgrees that DHHS Data or derivative Ihere from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.”

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained- under this Conlract may no: be used for

any other purposes thal are not indicated in this Conlract.

6. The Contractor agrees (o grant access to the data to the authorized representatives

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to conﬁrm c0mphance with the 1e/ms of this
Contract.

li. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. If End User is transmamng DHHS dala containing
Confidential Data between dpplications, the Conlractor attesls the applicalions have
been evaluated by an experl knowledgeable in, cyber secunty and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmissian via the inlernel

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End Usér may not use compulet disks
or portable storage de\nces such as a thumb drive, as a method of.transmitting OHHS

data, .

Encwpted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is gncrypted and being sent lo and being received by ema:l ‘addresses of

. persons authonzed to receive such information.

Encrypled Web Snle Il End User is emp!oymg the Web lo transmil Confidential
Data, the secure sockel layers (SSL) must be used and the web site musi be
secure. SSL encrypts dala transmitted via a Web site. ; ’

File Hosling Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage to transmit -
Confidential Data. .

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Conl’denllal Dala via certified ground
mail within the conhnenta1 U.S. and when seni ta @ named individual.

Laplops and PDA. If End User is employing porable devices to transmil
Confidenfial Dala said devices mus! be encrypted and password-protecied.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmil Confidential Data via an open

Vs, Lost updalo 10/00/18 Exhibh K Conimadior tritlals hs .
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wireless network. End User must employ a vintual privale nerwom (VPN) when .
remotely lransmmlng via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access of lransmit Confidential Data, & virual private network (VPN) musl be
installed on the End User's mobile devnce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH Fite Transfer Protoco! (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Peotocol, If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges 1o prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-delelion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours). .

11, Wireless Devnces It End User is uensmmmg Conf dential Data via wireless dev:ces all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information, .~

Iil. RETENTION AND DISPOSIT]ON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Conlractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. Afler such.lime, the Contractor will have 30 days 1o destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form, it may exist, unless, othenmse required Dy law or permmed
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transler or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud compuling, cloud service or cloud storage capa’oilmes and inctudes backup
dala and Drsastet Recovery locations.

. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper securily monitoring capabllmes are in
place to detect polential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Oepariment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contraclor agrees 1o provide security awareness and education for us End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contracior agrees to retaln all eleclronic and hard copies of Confi dentual Data
in a secure Jocation and idenliied in section IV, A.2

5. The Contractor agrees- Confidential. Data slored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable stalutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anli-spam, anti-spyware, and anli-malware ulilities. The environment, as a

V5, Leslupdale 10/03/18 Exhidil K Conmuummuq’ﬁ—\
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v

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

The Contractor agrees lo and ensures its complete cooperation with the Siate's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any secuury vulnerability of the hoshng
infrastructure. .

B. Disposition

T

If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on ils systems (of its
sub-contractor sysltems), the Contractor will maintain a documenled process for

* securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will .

obtain written cedification for any State of New Hampshire data deslroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance wilh mduslry -accepled standards for secure deletion and media
sanilizalion, or otherwise physically deslroying the 'media” (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Specia! Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Inslitute of Standards and Technology u. S
Depanment of Commerce. The Contractor will document and cerlify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written centification to the Department
upon_ request. The wiilien cerification ‘will include all delails necessary lo
demonsuate data has been properly destroyed and validaled. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be’jointly
evaluated by the Slale and Contractor prior to destruction.

Unless olhefwise specified, wilhin thitty (30) days of the lermination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Da1a using a-
secure method such as shredding.

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Conlracz Contraclor agrees'to completely deslroy all etectronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to saleguard the OHHS Data received under this Contracl, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

= .

The. Contractor will maintain proper securit;} contrals 1o protect Depan}nenl
confidential informalion collected, processed, managed, andlor stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

The' Contraclor will maintain policies and procedures to pratect Depariment
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformalion, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used lo store the dala (i.e., tape, disk, paper,-etc.).

V3, Last updale 10V0R/18 Enbl K Contractor Infilals
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access conlrols to
contraclor systems that collect, iransmit, or stare Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabililies are in place to
delect potenlial security evenis thal can impact State of NH syslems and/of
Department confidential information lor conlractor provided systems. :

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
* Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-coniracting any core functions” of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security

_expeclations, and monitoring compliance to security requiremenits that at a mipimum
maten those for the Contraclor, including breach notificalion requirements. -

7. The Conlractor will work with the’Depariment to sign and comply with all applicable-
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, ‘sysiems access forms, and compuler use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Depariment system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor' and any applicable sub-conltractors prior 10
system access being authorized. .

8. If the Department delermines the Contractor is a Business-Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Conlractor will execule a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance. with'the
agreement. - -

9. . The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the ‘Oeparntment and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate lime frame atthe Depariments discretion with agreement by.
the Conlractor, or the Departmenl may request the survey be compleled when the
scope of the engagement between the Depanment and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stete of New Hampshire

or Department dala offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless

\ prior express writlen consent is obtained ‘from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Depariment. '

11. Dala Security Breach Liability. In the event of any securily breach Contractor shall
makej efforts (o investigate the causes of the breach, promplly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulling from the breach.

. The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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12,

13.

14,

15.

16.

the breach, including but not limiled to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with websile and telephone call center services necessary due 10
the breach.

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
mainlain the privacy ond security of Pl and PHI at a leve! and scope that is not less
than the leve! and scope of requirements applicable 1o federal agencies, including, -
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act’Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern prolections lor individually 1denhﬁable health
informalion and as applicable under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and malntain appropriate adminisirative, 1echnical, and
physical safeguards lo protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Dala and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to il. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope-of securily requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement al hiips:/www.nh.gov/doitvendor/index.htm
for the Depariment of Informalion Technology policies, guidelines, slandards, and
procurement information relating to vendors. ) '

Conlractor agrees to maintain a documented breach - nofification and , incident
response procass. The Conlractor will nolily the State’s Privacy Officer and the

. State’s Security Officer of any security breach rmmedaalely at the ema:l addresses

provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incidenl, or suspected breach which affects ot includes any Slale of New
Hampshire systems that connect.to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor musl restrict access Ic;\lhe Confidential Dala obtained under this
Contract 10 only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purpases identified in this Conlracl.

The Contraclor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply.with_sucm ‘saleguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemenled o protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Conlract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information al all times,

c. ensure thal laplops and olher electronic devices/media coniaining PHI, P, or
PFi are encrypted and password-protected.

d. .send emails conlaining Confidential Information only if en ﬂ‘g ed and being -
sent 1o and being received by email addresses of persons aulhmczed to
recelve suchinformation,
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information t6 the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential tAformation received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHHS Dala, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unautharized persons
dunng duly hours as well as non-duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, elc.).

- @. only authorized End Users may transmil the Confidential Data, including any
derivalive files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section 1V above. .

h. in_all other instances Confidential Data must be mainlained, used an&
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as delermuned by a- risk-based
assessment of the circumslances involved, .

-i. understand that their user credentials {user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential inférmation secure.
This applies to credentials used tq access the sile directly or indirectly through
a third party application,

Contraclor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users, DHHS
‘reserves the right to conducl onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided.in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such lime the Conﬁdemlal Oala .
is dlsposed of in accordance.wilh this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any '
" Security Incidents and Breaches :n‘medtate[y at the emall addresses provided in
Section VI.

Fhe Contractor must further handle and repon tncidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Iacident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431,300 - 308. In addilion to, and
nolwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contraclor's procedures must also address how the Contraclor will;

"1, Identity Incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiabie information is involved in Incidents:
3. Report suspecled or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37,
4

. Identify and convene a core response group lo determine the risk level of Incidenls
and determine risk-based responses 10 Incidents; and -
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$. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, idenlify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear cosls associated with the Breach nouce as well as any mitigation
measures:

Incidents and/or Breaches thal implicale Pl must be addressed and reported. as
applicable, in accordance wllh NH RSA 359-C:20. .

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
' ~ DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
‘8. DHHS Security-OHicer:
' DKHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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